
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 2, 2023, 2023 

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings 
will continue to be offered via Zoom see final page for connection 
details. Per Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is LOW; masks 
are not required.  

 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items 
for public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME (both in 
person and on Zoom).  It is suggested that you enter your full name as your ID on 
Zoom. 
 

II. Public Hearing 
Amendments to the General Assistance Ordinance Appendices A-H 
 

III. Post Public Hearing 
A. Discussion and Approve Amendments to the General Assistance Ordinance 

Appendices A-H 
 

IV. Minutes 
A. Approval of minutes from September 18, 2023 meeting 

 
V. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

None presented 
 

VI. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
A. Town of Mount Desert Awarded 2nd place for Maine Municipal Association’s Annual 

Report Competition in the 1,000 to 2,499 population category 
B. Thank you note from Mia Eason for the Reynolds Scholarship 
C. ME LWCF Pre-application Site Inspection 2024 grant for Skating Rink Compressor 

Project 
D. Hancock County Commissioners Meeting Minutes from September 6, 2023 
E. Hancock County Commissioners Public Hearing Notice:  2024 Budget estimates 

 
VII. Selectboard’s Reports 
 
 

VIII. Unfinished Business 
A. Recommendation from Harbor Committee concerning proposed Friends of Acadia 

Event at the Marina Green 
B. Public Space Special Event Application – Friends of Acadia Benefit Auction – August 

5-12, 2024, Northeast Harbor Village Green 
 
 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda October 2, 2023 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Unfinished Business continued 
C. Public Space Special Event Application –Garden Club of Mount Desert – Tracy 

Combs; Seal Harbor Village Green; Saturday, July 27, 2024 10am – 4:00 pm; to 
include parking plan 

D. Update on soliciting appointments to the Comprehensive Plan Committee 
E. Discussion with planning consultant Noel Musson concerning proposed short-term 

rental ordinance 
F. Sign Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Town of Tremont designating 

the responsibilities of the administration of a Community Resilience Partnership 
Action grant for implementing the Town’s Climate Action Plan 

G. Proposed letter to Senator Angus S. King concerning the proposed turnaround at the 
Otter Creek Landing 

H. Discussion regarding final costs of Versant work related to the Main Street Project 
and acceptance 
 

IX. New Business 
A. Request Liquor License Extension through October 16, 2023 – Eliza Bishop/DBA 

Milk and Honey 
B. Request from Harbor Committee to open a line of communication with the Cranberry 

Isles Board of Selectmen 
C. Request authorization to pay for replacement of Northeast Harbor Mooring Floats 

top and bottom chains and mooring stone by Alvah B. Barge Service Inc. for 
$5,479.36. The Northeast Harbor Mooring/Floats CIP 6410100-24681 has a balance 
of $357,953.04 

D. Request authorization to pay for repairs made to the Seal Harbor Dinghy dock back 
chains by Alvah B. Barge Service Inc. for $2,285.41. The Seal Harbor 
Mooring/Floats CIP 6410200-24601 has a balance of $126,366.09 

E. Request authorization to purchase our FY-24 winter sand from Harold MacQuinn, 
Inc. at a price of $16.75 per cubic yard, delivered 

 
X. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 

Business or out of order.) 
A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 

 
 

XI. Treasurer’s Warrants 
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 

Town Invoices AP#2421 10/3/2023 $539,065.98 
Total   $539,065.98 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2419 

 
9/20/2023 

 
$2,430.35 

 AP#2420 9/27/2023 $96,478.62 
Town Payroll PR#2408 9/29/2023 $174,342.32 
Total   $273,251.29 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda October 2, 2023 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 
Warrants as shown below: 

School Invoices   $0 
School Payroll PR#7 9/29/2023 $198,706.45 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
 

  
$0 

Total   $198,706.45 
 

Grand Total   $1,011,023.72 
 

XII. Adjournment 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, October 16, 2023 in the Meeting 
Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor 
 
The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BS meeting now 
has a password. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  





Page 6 • Classifieds The Courier-Gazette The Ellswcnai Thursday, September 21, 2023

Town of
MOUNT DESERT

Public Hearing
GENERAL ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE APPENDICES A-H

2023-2024
Thc Board of Selectmen will hold a public hearing at its regular

meeting which commences at 6:30 p.m., Monday, October 2, 2023

in the Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea St, Northeast Harbor to

receive public comment on amendments to the General Assistance

Ordinance. A copy of the appendices are available at the Town Of-

lice and on the town’s website.

;ii cards, old schoolhouse dr
# . .

,uuI THROUGH REMOTE PROPERTY iaues,’. Wltii attacieu chair,iingto METHODS (ZOOM) APPROXIMATELY 0.27-
,

scholarship plaque, 1gltat1ve IS PERMITTED, ACRE LOT LOCATED AT

.

speaking trophy, Bar HarbISS ADDITIONAL 59 FRANKLIN STREET

dog, basketball runner u
ne, a INFORMATION (TAX MAP 134 LOT 33) Ir

.
•9f the ABOUT ACCESSING THE DOWNTOWN (DT)

, memonacup, l952debatebasis THE MEETING ZONING DISTRICT.
•;i) signed softball, basketballe and REMOTELY WILL BE A. PUBLIC HEAkING

theater trophy typical b&t and POSTED AT WWW B DETERMINATION OF

senior girl trophy senior h or in ELLSWORTHMAINE. COMPLETENESS
, ‘H the GOV AND ON THE CITY 5. PROPOSEDresman Uoy trophy, 195k 18-C FACEBOOK PAGE BY AMENDMENTS TO

grammar school sports trot NOON ON THE DAY CHAPTER 56 UNIFIED
1968,1967, 1966, 1955, gJ(D S. OF THE MEETING. DEVELOPMENT

1953 1952 1951 1950 19noine, PERSONS REQUESTING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE
, , , , Law- ACCOMMODATIONS 4 SHORELAND

I,,o, I,,, z6, 1935, 19 Lam- TO ACCESS THE ZONING, ARTICLE
1923, 1922, 1921, 1920, tUtjnted MEETING MAY REACH 8 PERFORMANCE

q decorative glass urn, dec6ive. THE PLANNING STANDARDS,
) ceramic rilate lar 4ANN DEPARTMENT ARTICLE 11 PARKING

. , , ate of AT (207) 669-6615 STANDARDS,
S

ceramic statues, OR MWILLIAMS@ AND ARTICLE 14
net lace dress, brown chat Blue ELLSWORTHMAINE. DEFINITIONS.
piece costume, yellow cinted GOV. THE PROPOSED

S. iacket set rasnberrv leaf rtive. 1. CALL TO ORDER AMENDMENTS WILL
. , .

r
GON- 2. ADOPTION OF ADD NEW DEFINITIONS

blue taffeta dinner dress,
De- MINUTES FROM THE AND PERFORMANCE

dress,straplessblackstatiner H SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 STANDARDS TO COME
satin square neck W.ddivenue REGULAR MEETING. INTO COMPLIANCE

ink I ce an” dress i 5 a -

FINAL PLAN WITH THE STATE’S
: ‘ ‘ ‘ V • ‘ REVIEW OF A PASSING OF LD
)l gold evening dress, red VePre MAJOR SUBDIVISION 2003. THESE

1 evening gown, pink and t TOR- ENTITLED 59 CHANGES RELATE

: insignias, photo of hotel r Har-
FRANKLIN FOR TO AFFORDABLE

burned child to burn .
APPLICANT CORY HOUSING, ACCESSORY

I,
een . WEIGAND AND OWNER DWELLING UNITS,

umbrella, velvet dress shoWanter FRANKLIN, LLC. AND ZONING DENSITY
from photography shop, ppoint- THE PROPOSAL RATIOS.
tortoise shell comb, silvertati’e J5 TO CONVERT A. DISCUSSION

k r i k
,1a E P H THE EXISTING OF PROPOSED

•f4
r u , • n , ksville, RESTAURANT INTO AMENDMENTS

benchshowribbon,fairrilBloom 4 RESIDENTIAL B. PUBLIC HEARING
show second place ribbo Essex UNITS. THE SUBJECT C. RECOMMENDATION

;; Woman’s magazine, Ladflt PROPERTY IS AN TO CITY COUNCIL
. 1 If I k U )tive. APPROXIMATELY 0.27- 6. STAFF COMMENTS

p 0 0 0 go c u , oc eEN A. ACRE LOT LOCATED AT 7. ADJOURNMENT
table small wooden oval Man 59 FRANKLIN STREET

MDIRSSAOS9I
Tremont Consolidated School is accepting proposals Q
foranewADAschool bus. R

S
.

S
Interested parties are encouraged to contact Eric s

Hann with any questions. 207-812-6507 1 eric.hann@ AOS#91

mdirss.org

Please send proposals to:

Eric Hann

MDIRSS AOS 91

PC Box 60

Mount Desert, ME 04660

Proposals are due no later than 1 2 noon on October 1 8, 2023

The School Committee reserves the right to accept or reject any or
all proposals. E.O.E.

,

I I

HANC

S

ELLSWORTH SCHO0LDEPARTMENT REQUEST FOR
QUALIFICATIONS ENERGY CONSERVATION PROJECT
Pursuant to Section 1 5915 of Title 20-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, the
Ellsworth School Department (Ellsworth Schools) is interested in an energy
conservation/air quality improvement project. Ellsworth Schools is requesting
that parties interested in receiving a Request for the Qualifications document
and submitting a response, understand that our primary focus is to help
the school department accomplish a competitive bid process for Priority I
measures that will qualify for the open School Revolving Renovation Funds

(SRRF)which are due by the end of October 2023. Parties interested in
receiving a Request for Qualifications document and submitting a response

must notify: Amy Boles, 66 Main Street, Suite 201, Ellsworth ME 04605, by
email at abolesellsworthschools.org or by phone at 207-664-7100. The
selected energy services company will be responsible for completion of all

aspects of the design and the work of the project in compliance with Section

1 591 5, including guarantees of performance. It is anticipated that the initial first

phase project will include an expeditious audit of priority I facility improvement
measures that could potentially qualify for the open School Revolving

Renovation Funds. Qualifications must be submitted by September 29, 2023.

SURRYIiJJ!i4Thii:Wi4

The Town of Surry will hold
Two Public Hearings on

October 4th and October 1 ith at 6pm
at the Surry Fire Department

to discuss the cannabis
referendum ballot.

The election will be held on
November 7th from 8am-8pm.

5’
ooklin,

Mount P0.
E04614

is eGrain
0 80547

NERp

Interested patLA G.
. ooklan,

with any quest1 o.
E04614
: Grain-

80547
Repre

tIANE
Driand,
illiams
rn Rd.

Proposals are dL & Pe
ox 365

The School Committee,ojnted
atives.

PUBLIC NOTICE
2024 HANCOCK COUNTY BUDGET
. ESTIMATES PUBLiC HEARING

P
... .

F

:ksport,
. 1 White

P°’sd Per-

Ufl(

__—--zz’ -

____

LOCAL
POLICE
RIPORTS..;

Check it out-
vru wIi in uniir InriI

Coastal Drilling
ME 04605,
RO. Box 789, Ell

drilling and ila.
- e McFarlanø4’”

,,, 568





  
 

 

Maine Department of Health and Human Services 

Office for Family Independence 

109 Capitol St. 

11 State House Station 

Augusta, Maine 04333-0011 

Tel.: (207) 624-4168; Toll-Free: (800) 442-6003 

TTY: Dial 711 (Maine Relay); Fax: (207) 287-3455 

  

 

Janet T. Mills 

Governor 

 
Jeanne M. Lambrew, Ph.D. 

Commissioner 

 

 

 

 
To:  Welfare Officials and Contracted Agents 

From:  Sara Denson, Program Manager, General Assistance 

Date:  August 28, 2023 

Subject: New GA Maximums for October 1, 2023 

  

Enclosed please find the following items:   

• MMA's new (October 1, 2023–September 30, 2024) “General Assistance Ordinance 

Appendices” (A – H). 

• Recovery Residence Housing Maximums (October 1, 2023-September 30, 2024) 

• “GA Ordinance Adoption Form” which was developed so that municipalities may 

easily send DHHS proof of the adoption of any updated or changed GA Ordinance. Once 

the selectpersons or council adopts the new ordinance, the enclosed form should be 

signed and submitted to DHHS. (see “Filing of GA Ordinance and/or Appendices” below 

for further information). 

• “GA Maximums Adoption Form” which was developed so that municipalities may 

easily send DHHS proof of GA maximums adoption.  Once the selectpersons or council 

adopts the new maximums, the enclosed form should be signed and submitted to DHHS. 

(see “Filing of GA Ordinance and/or Appendices” below for further information). 

 

Updates 

Please note that updates have been made to Appendix A (overall maximums), Appendix B (food 

maximums), and Appendix C (housing maximums) of the General Assistance Ordinance.  There 

is also a new Recovery Residence Housing Maximums guide.  You can find information about the 

MMA Model Ordinance on the Maine Welfare Director’s Association (MWDA) website at 

www.mainewelfaredirectors.org.  

 

Appendix A – H  

The enclosed Appendices A – H have been revised for your municipality’s General Assistance 

Ordinance.  These new Appendices, once adopted, should replace the existing Appendices A – 

G.  Even if you are not updating your GA Ordinance, the municipal officers must approve/adopt 

the new Appendices yearly.   

 

http://www.mainewelfaredirectors.org/


 

 
  2 

The Adoption Process 

The municipal officers (i.e., selectpersons/council) adopt the local General Assistance 

Ordinance and yearly Appendices, even in town meeting communities.  The law requires that 

the municipal officers conduct a notice and hearing prior to the adoption of the Ordinance and/or 

Appendices.  Seven days posted notice is recommended, unless local law (or practice) provides 

otherwise. 

At the hearing, the municipal officers should: 

 

1) Allow all interested members of the public an opportunity to comment on the proposed 

ordinance;  

2) End public discussion, close the hearing; and  

3) Move and vote to adopt the ordinance and/or appendices either in its posted form or as amended 

in light of public discussion. 

 

Municipalities May Establish Their Own Maximums 

Municipalities may establish their own maximum levels of assistance provided that the proposed 

levels of assistance are reasonable and meet adequate standards sufficient to maintain the health 

and safety of applicants in the municipality. The municipality must submit to the Department 

documentation to justify these levels of assistance and verify that the figures developed are 

appropriate to maintain health and decency. 

 

A municipality’s maximum assistance level for Food may not be below the Department provided 

figures which are issued by the USDA and published annually following a study of cost of food 

for various family sizes.  A market basket survey may be used to establish food maximums if the 

maximums provided by the USDA are insufficient to maintain health in the municipality. 

(C.M.R. 10-144, Chapter 323, Section V). 

 

Filing of GA Ordinance and/or Appendices 

Please remember that General Assistance law requires each municipality to send DHHS a copy of 

its ordinance once adopted, should that ordinance differ from the MMA Model. Any changes or 

amendments, such as new Appendices, must also be submitted to DHHS.  DHHS will accept the 

enclosed “adoption sheet” as proof that your Municipal Officers have adopted the current MMA 

Model GA maximums and/or ordinance. If you are not making changes to your adopted ordinance, 

you are only required to submit verification that the new Appendices have been adopted. 



2
0
2
3
  
    

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
G

en
er

al
 A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 M

ax
im

u
m

s 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 S
h
ee

t 
- 

H
an

co
ck

 C
o
u
n

ty
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

 2
0

2
4
  
  

  
  

O
ct

 1
, 

2
0

2
3

 t
o

 S
ep

t 
3

0
, 
2

0
2
4

  
  

 

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
S

 (
A

) 
 

P
er

so
n
s 

in
 H

o
u
se

h
o
ld

 
1

 
2

 
3

 
4

 
5

 

$
9
6
5
  

$
9
9
6
  

$
1

,1
9

8
  

$
1

,5
2

1
  

$
1

,6
5

5
  

H
o
u

se
h

o
ld

 o
f 

6
 =

 $
1

,7
3

0
 

*
 A

d
d

 $
7

5
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 p

er
so

n
 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

S
 (

C
) 

 
U

N
H

E
A

T
E

D
 

H
ea

te
d

 
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 
W

ee
k

ly
 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

W
ee

k
ly

 
M

o
n

th
ly

 

0
 

$
1
9
1
 

$
8
2
1
 

$
2
2
1
 

$
9

5
0
 

1
 

$
1
9
1
 

$
8
2
1
 

$
2
2
8
 

$
9

7
9
 

2
 

$
2
2
2
 

$
9
5
6
 

$
2
7
4
 

$
1

,1
7

7
 

3
 

$
2
8
5
 

$
1
,2

2
7
 

$
3
4
8
 

$
1

,4
9

6
 

4
 

$
3
0
1
 

$
1
,2

9
3
 

$
3
7
8
 

$
1

,6
2

5
 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 (

D
) 

N
O

T
E

: 
F

o
r 

an
 e

le
ct

ri
ca

ll
y

 h
ea

te
d
 d

w
el

li
n
g

 a
ls

o
 s

ee
 

“H
ea

ti
n

g
 F

u
el

” 
m

ax
im

u
m

s 
b

el
o

w
. 
B

u
t 

re
m

em
b
er

, 
an

 
ap

p
li

ca
n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 e

n
ti

tl
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
“m

ax
im

u
m

s”
 

es
ta

b
li

sh
ed

 a
p
p

li
ca

n
ts

 m
u

st
 d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

 n
ee

d
. 

 

1
) 

E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 M
ax

im
u

m
s 

fo
r 

H
o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
W

it
h
o
u

t 
E

le
ct

ri
c 

H
o

t 
W

at
er

: 
T

h
e 

m
ax

im
u

m
 a

m
o

u
n
ts

 a
ll

o
w

ed
 f

o
r 

u
ti

li
ti

es
, 

fo
r 

li
g

h
ts

, 
co

o
k
in

g
 

an
d

 
o
th

er
 

el
ec

tr
ic

 
u

se
s 

ex
cl

u
d
in

g
 

el
ec

tr
ic

 h
o

t 
w

at
er

 a
n

d
 h

ea
t:

  

N
u

m
b

er
 i

n
 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 

W
ee

k
ly

 
M

o
n

th
ly

 

1
  

$
1

9
.9

5
  

$
8

5
.5

0
  

2
  

$
2

2
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.5

0
  

3
  

$
2

4
.9

7
  

$
1

0
7

.0
0

  

4
  

$
2

7
.5

3
  

$
1

1
8

.0
0

  

5
  

$
2

9
.8

8
  

$
1

2
8

.5
0

  

6
  

$
3

2
.5

5
  

$
1

3
9

.5
0

  

N
O

T
E

: 
F

o
r 

ea
ch

 a
d
d

it
io

n
al

 p
er

so
n

 a
d
d

 $
1
0

.5
0

 

p
er

 m
o
n

th
. 

 

 
2

) 
E

le
ct

ri
ci

ty
 M

ax
im

u
m

s 
fo

r 
H

o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
W

it
h

 E
le

ct
ri

ca
ll

y
 

H
ea

te
d

 H
o

t 
W

at
er

: 
T

h
e 

m
ax

im
u

m
 a

m
o

u
n
ts

 a
ll

o
w

ed
 f

o
r 

u
ti

li
ti

es
, 

h
o

t 
w

at
er

, 
fo

r 
li

g
h

ts
, 

co
o
k

in
g

 a
n
d

 o
th

er
 e

le
ct

ri
c 

u
se

s 
ex

cl
u
d

in
g

 h
ea

t:
  

N
u

m
b

er
 i

n
 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 

W
ee

k
ly

 
M

o
n

th
ly

 

1
  

$
2

9
.6

3
  

$
1

2
7

.0
0

  

2
  

$
3

4
.0

7
  

$
1

4
6

.0
0

  

3
  

$
3

9
.6

7
  

$
1

7
0

.0
0

  

4
  

$
4

6
.3

2
  

$
1

9
8

.5
0

  

5
  

$
5

5
.6

5
 

$
2

3
8

.5
0

  

6
  

$
5

8
.6

8
  

$
2

5
1

.5
0

  

N
O

T
E

: 
F

o
r 

ea
ch

 a
d
d

it
io

n
al

 p
er

so
n

 a
d
d

 $
1

4
.5

0
 

p
er

 m
o
n

th
. 

 

 

1
-8

0
0
-4

4
2
-6

0
0
3

 

 

R
ev

is
ed

 8
/2

8
/2

3
 

 

F
O

O
D

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

S
 (

B
) 

 

P
er

so
n

s 
W

ee
k

ly
 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

1
 

$
6

7
.6

7
 

$
2

9
1

.0
0
 

2
 

$
1

2
4

.4
2
 

$
5

3
5

.0
0
 

3
 

$
1

7
8

.1
4
 

$
7

6
6

.0
0
 

4
 

$
2

2
6

.2
8
 

$
9

7
3

.0
0
 

5
 

$
2

6
8

.6
0
 

$
1

,1
5

5
.0

0
 

6
 

$
3

2
2

.3
3
 

$
1

,3
8

6
.0

0
 

7
 

$
3

5
6

.2
8
 

$
1

,5
3

2
.0

0
 

8
 

$
4

0
7

.2
1
 

$
1

,7
5

1
.0

0
 

A
d

d
 $

2
1

9
 p

er
 m

o
n

th
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 +
 p

er
so

n
 

 

 

P
E

R
S

O
N

A
L

 C
A

R
E

 &
 H

O
U

S
E

H
O

L
D

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 (

F
) 

 
 

N
u

m
b

er
 i

n
 H

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 
W

ee
k

ly
 A

m
o

u
n

t 
M

o
n

th
ly

 A
m

o
u

n
t 

1
-2

  
$

1
0

.5
0

  
$

4
5

.0
0

  

3
-4

  
$

1
1

.6
0

  
$

5
0

.0
0

  

5
-6

  
$

1
2

.8
0

  
$

5
5

.0
0

  

7
-8

  
$

1
4

.0
0

  
$

6
0

.0
0

  

N
O

T
E

: 
F

o
r 

ea
ch

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 p

er
so

n
 a

d
d

 $
1

.2
5

 p
er

 w
ee

k
 o

r 
$
5
.0

0
 

p
er

 m
o
n

th
. 

 
 

    
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
E

A
T

IN
G

 F
U

E
L

 (
E

) 
 

 N
O

T
E

: 
W

h
en

 t
h
e 

d
w

el
li

n
g

 u
n
it

 i
s 

h
ea

te
d

 e
le

ct
ri

ca
ll

y
, 
th

e 
m

ax
im

u
m

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
al

lo
w

ed
 f

o
r 

h
ea

ti
n
g
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
w

il
l 

b
e 

ca
lc

u
la

te
d

 b
y
 m

u
lt

ip
ly

in
g

 t
h
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
g
al

lo
n

s 
o

f 
fu

el
 

al
lo

w
ed

 f
o

r 
th

at
 m

o
n

th
 b

y
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
ri

ce
 p

er
 g

al
lo

n
. 

W
h

en
 

fu
el

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
w

o
o

d
, 
co

al
 a

n
d
/o

r 
n
at

u
ra

l 
g
as

 a
re

 u
se

d
 f

o
r 

h
ea

ti
n
g

 p
u

rp
o

se
s,

 t
h

ey
 w

il
l 

b
e 

b
u

d
g

et
ed

 a
t 

ac
tu

al
 r

at
es

, 
if

 t
h
ey

 

ar
e 

re
as

o
n

ab
le

. 
N

o
 e

li
g
ib

le
 a

p
p

li
ca

n
t 

sh
al

l 
b

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 t

o
 

n
ee

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 7

 t
o
n

s 
o

f 
co

al
 p

er
 y

ea
r,

 8
 c

o
rd

s 
o

f 
w

o
o

d
 p

er
 

y
ea

r,
 1

2
6

,0
0

0
 c

u
b
ic

 f
ee

t 
o

f 
n
at

u
ra

l 
g

as
 p

er
 y

ea
r,

 o
r 

1
0

0
0

 

g
al

lo
n

s 
o

f 
p

ro
p
an

e.
  

M
o
n
th

 
G

al
lo

n
s 

M
o
n
th

 
G

al
lo

n
s 

Ja
n

u
ar

y
 

2
2

5
  

Ju
n

-A
u

g
 

0
  

F
eb

ru
ar

y
 

2
2

5
  

S
ep

te
m

b
er

  
5

0
  

M
ar

ch
  

1
2

5
  

O
ct

o
b

er
  

1
0

0
  

A
p

ri
l 

 
1

2
5
 

N
o

v
em

b
er

 
2

0
0

  

M
ay

 
  

 5
0
 

D
ec

em
b

er
 

2
0

0
  

 

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

 F
O

R
 H

O
U

S
E

H
O

L
D

S
 W

IT
H

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 U

N
D

E
R

 5
  

W
h

en
 a

n
 a

p
p
li

ca
n

t 
ca

n
 v

er
if

y
 e

x
p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
 i

te
m

s,
 a

 s
p

ec
ia

l 
su

p
p
le

m
en

t 
w

il
l 

b
e 

b
u
d
g

et
ed

 a
s 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f

o
r 

h
o
u

se
h
o

ld
s 

w
it

h
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 u

n
d
er

 5
 y

ea
rs

 

o
f 

ag
e 

fo
r 

it
em

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
cl

o
th

 o
r 

d
is

p
o
sa

b
le

 d
ia

p
er

s,
 l

au
n

d
ry

 p
o

w
d

er
, 
o

il
, 

sh
am

p
o
o

, 

an
d

 o
in

tm
en

t 
u
p

 t
o
 t

h
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

: 
 

  

M
IL

E
A

G
E

 R
A

T
E

 (
G

) 

4
6

 c
en

ts
 (

$
0

.4
6
) 

p
er

 m
il

e 

  

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 

W
ee

k
ly

 A
m

o
u

n
t 

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

m
o
u

n
t 

1
  

$
1

2
.8

0
  

$
5

5
.0

0
  

2
  

$
1

7
.4

0
  

$
7

5
.0

0
  

3
  

$
2

3
.3

0
  

$
1

0
0

.0
0

  

4
  

$
2

7
.9

0
  

$
1

2
0

.0
0

  

F
U

N
E

R
A

L
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
S

 (
H

) 

B
u

ri
al

: 
$

1
,4

7
5

+
; 

C
re

m
at

io
n

: 
$
1

,0
2

5
+

 
 



Appendix A 
Effective:  10/01/23-09/30/24 

 

 

Prepared by MMA 

8/2023 

 

` 

1  

2023-2024 GA Overall Maximums  
 

Metropolitan Areas 
 Persons in Household 

COUNTY 1 2 3 4 5* 

Bangor HMFA: 
Bangor, Brewer, Eddington, Glenburn, Hampden, 

Hermon, Holden, Kenduskeag, Milford, Old Town, 

Orono, Orrington, Penobscot Indian Island 

Reservation, Veazie 

 

886 

 

1,029 

 

1,316 

 

 

1,638 

 

2,241 

      
Cumberland County HMFA: Baldwin, 

Bridgton, Brunswick, Harpswell, Harrison, Naples, 

New Gloucester, Pownal, Sebago 

 

1,103 

 

1,235 

 

1,626 

 

2,049 

 

2,215 

      

Lewiston/Auburn MSA: 
Auburn, Durham, Greene, Leeds, Lewiston, Lisbon, 

Livermore, Livermore Falls, Mechanic Falls, Minot, 

Poland, Sabattus, Turner, Wales 

 

853 

 

925 

 

1,186 

 

1,543 

 

1,870 

      

Penobscot County HMFA: 
Alton, Argyle UT, Bradford, Bradley, Burlington, 

Carmel, Carroll plantation, Charleston, Chester, 

Clifton, Corinna, Corinth, Dexter, Dixmont, Drew 

plantation, East Central Penobscot UT, East 

Millinocket, Edinburg, Enfield, Etna, Exeter, 

Garland, Greenbush, Howland, Hudson, Kingman 

UT, Lagrange, Lakeville, Lee, Levant, Lincoln, 

Lowell town, Mattawamkeag, Maxfield, Medway, 

Millinocket, Mount Chase, Newburgh Newport, 

North Penobscot UT, Passadumkeag, Patten, 

Plymouth, Prentiss UT, Seboeis plantation, 

Springfield, Stacyville, Stetson, Twombly UT, 

Webster plantation, Whitney UT, Winn, Woodville 

 

846 

 

853 

 

 

1,126 

 

1,408 

 

1,537 

      
Portland HMFA: 
Cape Elizabeth, Casco, Chebeague Island, 

Cumberland, Falmouth, Freeport, Frye Island, 

Gorham, Gray, Long Island,  North Yarmouth, 

Portland, Raymond, Scarborough, South Portland, 

Standish, Westbrook, Windham, Yarmouth; Buxton, 

Hollis, Limington, Old Orchard Beach 

 

1,367 

 

1,593 

 

2,045 

 

2,611 

 

3,201 

      

Sagadahoc HMFA: 
Arrowsic, Bath, Bowdoin, Bowdoinham, 

Georgetown, Perkins UT, Phippsburg, Richmond, 

Topsham, West Bath, Woolwich 

 

938 

 

1,118 

 

1,360 

 

1,857 

 

2,219 



Appendix A 
Effective:  10/01/23-09/30/24 

 

 

Prepared by MMA 

8/2023 

 

` 

2  

 
COUNTY 1 2 3 4 5* 

York County HMFA:  
Acton, Alfred, Arundel, Biddeford, Cornish, Dayton, 

Kennebunk, Kennebunkport, Lebanon, Limerick, 

Lyman, Newfield, North Berwick, Ogunquit, 

Parsonsfield, Saco, Sanford, Shapleigh, Waterboro, 

Wells 

 

1,154 

 

1,217 

 

1,509 

 

1,961 

 

2,207 

      
York/Kittery/S.Berwick HMFA: 
Berwick, Eliot, Kittery, South Berwick, York 

 

1,327 

 

 

1,393 

 

1,834 

 

2,489 

 

3,175 

*Note:  Add $75 for each additional person. 

 

Non-Metropolitan Areas 
 Persons in Household 
 

COUNTY 1 2 3 4 5* 

 

Aroostook County 

 

742 

  

812 

 

951 

 

1,281 

 

1,464 

 

Franklin County 

 

781 

 

834 

 

1,033 

 

1,383 

 

1,695 

 

Hancock County 

 

965 

 

996 

 

1,198 

 

1,521 

 

1,655 

 

Kennebec County 

 

879 

 

899 

 

1,120 

 

1,470 

 

1,587 

 

Knox County 

 

905 

 

913 

 

1,120 

 

1,490 

 

1,592 

 

Lincoln County 

 

1,004 

 

1,013 

 

1,282 

 

1,582 

 

2,069 

 

Oxford County 

 

873 

 

878 

 

1,072 

 

1,514 

 

1,761 

 

Piscataquis County 

 

752 

 

810 

 

1,000 

 

1,326 

 

1,598 

 

Somerset County  

 

810 

 

851 

 

1,098 

 

1,430 

 

1,532 

 

Waldo County 

 

1,041 

 

1,047 

 

1,256 

 

1,558 

 

2,132 

 

Washington County 

 

811 

 

816 

 

 1,060 

 

1,328 

 

1,453 
 

* Please Note:  Add $75 for each additional person. 



Appendix B 
Effective:  10/01/23 to 09/30/24 

 B-1 Prepared by MMA - 8/2023 

   

2023-2024 Food Maximums 
 

Please Note:  The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the 

U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan. As of October 1, 2023, those amounts are: 

 

Number in 

Household 
Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 

1  $                   67.67   $                  291.00  

2                     124.42                       535.00  

3                     178.14                       766.00  

4                     226.28                       973.00  

5                     268.60                    1,155.00  

6                     322.33                    1,386.00  

7                     356.28                    1,532.00  

8                     407.21                    1,751.00  

 

 

 

 

Note:  For each additional person add $219 per month. 

 

 

 

https://fns-prod.azureedge.us/sites/default/files/resource-files/FY24-SNAP-COLA-Memo.pdf#page=3


Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/23-09/30/24 

 

 C-1 Prepared by MMA – 8/2023

   

2023-2024 GA Housing Maximums  
(Heated & Unheated Rents) 

 

NOTE: NOT ALL MUNICIPALITIES SHOULD ADOPT THESE SUGGESTED 

HOUSING MAXIMUMS!  ONLY consider adopting the following numbers if these figures 

are consistent with local rent values.  If not, a market survey should be conducted, and the 

figures altered accordingly. The results of any such survey must be presented to DHHS prior to 

adoption. Or, no housing maximums should be adopted and eligibility should be analyzed in 

terms of the Overall Maximum—Appendix A. (See Instruction Memo for further guidance.) 

 

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 

Aroostook County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 134 577 169 726 

1 139 598 185 794 

2 156 672 216 929 

3 218 940 292 1,256 

4 243 1,044 333 1,434 

     

Franklin County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 143 616 178 765 

1 144 620 190 816 

2 175 754 235 1,011 

3 242 1,042 316 1,358 

4 296 1,275 387 1,665 

     

Hancock County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 191 821 221 950 

1 191 821 228 979 

2 222 956 274 1,177 

3 285 1,227 348 1,496 

4 301 1,293 378 1,625 

     

Kennebec County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 171 735 201 864 

1 171 735 205 882 

2 204 878 256 1,099 

3 274 1,176 336 1,445 

4 285 1,225 362 1,557 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/23-09/30/24 

 

 C-2 Prepared by MMA – 8/2023

   

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 

Knox County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 177 761 207 890 

1 177 761 208 896 

2 204 878 256 1,099 

3 278 1,196 341 1,465 

4 286 1,230 363 1,562 

     

Lincoln County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 200 860 230 989 

1 200 860 232 996 

2 242 1,040 293 1,261 

3 300 1,288 362 1,557 

4 397 1,707 474 2,039 

     

Oxford County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 169 729 200 858 

1 169 729 200 861 

2 193 830 244 1,051 

3 284 1,220 346 1,489 

4 325 1,399 403 1,731 

     

Piscataquis County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 136 587 171 736 

1 139 596 184 792 

2 168 721 227 978 

3 229 985 302 1,301 

4 274 1,178 365 1,568 

     

Somerset County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 155 666 185 795 

1 155 666 194 834 

2 199 856 250 1,077 

3 264 1,136 327 1,405 

4 272 1,170 349 1,502 

 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/23-09/30/24 

 

 C-3 Prepared by MMA – 8/2023

   

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 

Waldo County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 209 897 239 1,026 

1 209 897 239 1,030 

2 236 1,014 287 1,235 

3 294 1,264 357 1,533 

4 412 1,770 489 2,102 

     

Washington County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 155 667 185 796 

1 155 667 186 799 

2 190 818 242 1,036 

3 241 1,034 303 1,303 

4 254 1,091 331 1,423 

Metropolitan FMR Areas 

Bangor HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 172 742 203 871 

1 196 841 235 1,012 

2 250 1,074 301 1,295 

3 313 1,344 375 1,613 

4 437 1,879 514 2,211 

     

Cumberland Cty. 

HMFA 
Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 223 959 253 1,088 

1 244 1,047 283 1,218 

2 322 1,384 373 1,605 

3 408 1,755 471 2,024 

4 431 1,853 508 2,185 

     

Lewiston/Auburn MSA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 165 709 195 838 

1 171 737 211 908 

2 220 944 271 1,165 

3 291 1,249 353 1,518 

4 351 1,508 428 1,840 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/23-09/30/24 

 

 C-4 Prepared by MMA – 8/2023

   

Metropolitan FMR Areas 

Penobscot Cty. HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 163 702 193 831 

1 163 702 194 836 

2 206 884 257 1,105 

3 259 1,114 322 1,383 

4 273 1,175 351 1,507 

     

Portland HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 284 1,223 314 1,352 

1 327 1,405 366 1,576 

2 419 1,803 471 2,024 

3 539 2,317 601 2,586 

4 660 2,839 738 3,171 

     

Sagadahoc Cty. HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 185 794 215 923 

1 216 930 256 1,101 

2 260 1,118 311 1,339 

3 364 1,563 426 1,832 

4 432 1,857 509 2,189 

     

York Cty. HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 235 1,010 265 1,139 

1 239 1,029 279 1,200 

2 295 1,267 346 1,488 

3 388 1,667 450 1,936 

4 429 1,845 506 2,177 

     

York/Kittery/S. Berwick 

HMFA 
 

Unheated 

 

Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 275 1,183 305 1,312 

1 280 1,205 320 1,376 

2 370 1,592 422 1,813 

3 511 2,195 573 2,464 

4 654 2,813 731 3,145 

 



FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY 
 

MMA 

08/23 

1 

2023-2024 GA MAXIMUMS SUMMARY SHEET 

 

Note:  The overall maximums found in Appendices A, B, C, D, E, and F are effective from 

October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2024. 

 

APPENDIX A - OVERALL MAXIMUMS  

 

County  Persons in Household 

  1 2 3 4 5 6 

        

        

NOTE:  For each additional person add $75 per month. 
 

(The applicable figures from Appendix A, once adopted, should be inserted here.) 

 

 

APPENDIX B - FOOD MAXIMUMS 
 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 
1 $ 67.67  $ 291.00 

2 124.42    535.00 

3 178.14   766.00 

4 226.28    973.00 

5 268.60  1,155.00 

6 322.33  1,386.00 

7 356.28                      1,532.00  

8 407.21 

 

 1,751.00 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $219 per month. 

 

 

APPENDIX C - HOUSING MAXIMUMS 

 

 
Unheated  Heated 

Number of 

Bedrooms 

 
Weekly  Monthly  Weekly 

 
Monthly 

0         

1         

2  

3         

4         

(The applicable figures from Appendix C, once adopted, should be inserted here.) 



FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY 
 

MMA 

08/23 

2 

 

APPENDIX D - UTILITIES  
 

ELECTRIC 
 

NOTE:  For an electrically heated dwelling also see “Heating Fuel” maximums below.  But remember, an 

applicant is not automatically entitled to the “maximums” established⎯applicants must demonstrate 

need. 
 

1)  Electricity Maximums for Households Without Electric Hot Water: The maximum amounts 

allowed for utilities, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding electric hot water and heat: 

Number in Household Weekly Monthly 

1 $19.95 $ 85.50 

2 $22.52 $ 96.50 

3 $24.97 $107.00 

4 $27.53 $118.00 

5 $29.88 $128.50 

6 $32.55 $139.50 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $10.50 per month. 
 

2)  Electricity Maximums for Households With Electrically Heated Hot Water:  The maximum 

amounts allowed for utilities, hot water, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding heat: 

Number in Household Weekly Monthly 

1 $29.63 $127.00 

2 $34.07 $146.00 

3 $39.67 $170.00 

4 $46.32 $198.50 

5 $55.65 $238.50 

6 $58.68 $251.50 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $14.50 per month. 
 

NOTE: For electrically heated households, the maximum amount allowed for electrical utilities per 

month shall be the sum of the appropriate maximum amount under this subsection and the appropriate 

maximum for heating fuel as provided below. 

 

APPENDIX E - HEATING FUEL  
 

Month Gallons Month Gallons 

September 50 January 225 

October 100 February 225 

November 200 March 125 

December 200 April 125 

  May 50 
 



FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY 
 

MMA 

08/23 

3 

NOTE:  When the dwelling unit is heated electrically, the maximum amount allowed for heating 

purposes will be calculated by multiplying the number of gallons of fuel allowed for that month 

by the current price per gallon.  When fuels such as wood, coal and/or natural gas are used for 

heating purposes, they will be budgeted at actual rates, if they are reasonable.  No eligible 

applicant shall be considered to need more than 7 tons of coal per year, 8 cords of wood per year, 

126,000 cubic feet of natural gas per year, or 1000 gallons of propane. 

 

APPENDIX F - PERSONAL CARE & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES 
 

 

Number in Household Weekly Amount Monthly Amount 

1-2 $10.50 $45.00 

3-4 $11.60 $50.00 

5-6 $12.80 $55.00 

7-8 $14.00 $60.00 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $1.25 per week or $5.00 per month. 

 

SUPPLEMENT FOR HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN UNDER 5 

 
When an applicant can verify expenditures for the following items, a special supplement will be budgeted 

as necessary for households with children under 5 years of age for items such as cloth or disposable 

diapers, laundry powder, oil, shampoo, and ointment up to the following amounts: 

 

Number of Children Weekly Amount Monthly Amount 

1 $12.80 $55.00 

2 $17.40 $75.00 

3 $23.30 $100.00 

4 $27.90 $120.00 

 



Appendix G 
Effective:  10/01/23-09/30/24 

 

 

Prepared by MMA 

8/2023 

1  

2023-2024 Mileage Rate  
 

This municipality adopts the State of Maine travel expense reimbursement rate as set by the Office of the 

State Comptroller.  The current rate for approved employment and necessary medical travel etc. is 46 cents 

(46¢) per mile.  

 

Please refer to the Office of the State Controller for changes to this rate at 626-8420 or visit 

http://www.state.me.us/osc/ 

 

http://www.state.me.us/osc/


Appendix H 
    Effective:  10/01/23-9/30/24 

 H-1 Prepared by SD 
- 8/2023 

Funeral Maximums  

 

Burial Maximums 

 

The maximum amount of general assistance granted for the purpose of burial is $1,475.   

The municipality’s obligation to provide funds for burial purposes is limited to a 

reasonable calculation of the funeral director’s direct costs, not to exceed the maximum 

amounts of assistance described in this section.  Allowable burial expenses are limited to:  

• removal of the body from a local residence or institution 

• a secured death certificate or obituary 

• embalming  

• a minimum casket 

• a reasonable cost for necessary transportation 

• other reasonable and necessary specified direct costs, as itemized by 

the funeral director and approved by the municipal administrator. 

 

Additional costs may be allowed by the GA administrator, where there is an actual cost, 

for: 

 

• the wholesale cost of a cement liner if the cemetery by-laws require 

one; 

• the opening and closing of the grave site; and 

• a lot in the least expensive section of the cemetery.  If the municipality 

is able to provide a cemetery lot in a municipally owned cemetery or 

in a cemetery under municipal control, the cost of the cemetery lot in 

any other cemetery will not be paid by the municipality. 

 

 

 
Cremation Maximums 

The maximum amount of assistance granted for a cremation shall be $1,025.   

The municipality’s obligation to provide funds for cremation purposes is limited to a 

reasonable calculation of the funeral director’s direct costs, not to exceed the maximum 

amounts of assistance described in this section.  Allowable cremation expenses are 

limited to:  

• removal and transportation of the body from a local residence or 

institution 

• professional fees 

• crematorium fees 

• a secured death certificate or obituary 



Appendix H 
    Effective:  10/01/23-9/30/24 

 H-2 Prepared by SD 
- 8/2023 

• other reasonable and necessary specified direct costs, as itemized by 

the funeral director and approved by the municipal administrator. 

Additional costs may be allowed by the GA administrator where there is an actual cost, 

for: 

• a cremation lot in the least expensive section of the cemetery 

• a reasonable cost for a burial urn not to exceed $55 

• transportation costs borne by the funeral director at a reasonable rate 

per mile for transporting the remains to and from the cremation 

facility. 

 



Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
148.88 595.50 161.44 645.75

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
153.00 612.00 148.50 594.00

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
183.56 734.25 156.38 599.25

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
165.38 661.50 193.13 772.50

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
165.38 672.00 149.81 599.25

Weekly Monthly
186.75 747.00

Metropolitan FMR Areas

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
189.75 759.00 295.50 1182.00

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
228.38 913.50 206.44 825.75

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
170.25 681.00 225.00 900.00

Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly
156.75 627.00 258.00 1032.00

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Cumberland 
Cty. HMFA

Lewiston/Aub
urn MSA

Penobscot Cty. 
HMFA

Portland 
HMFA

Knox County

Lincoln 
County

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Sagadahoc 
Cty. HMFA

York Cty. 
HMFA

York/Kittery/S
. Berwick 

HMFA

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Washington 
County

Bangor HMFA

Piscataquis 
County

Somerset 
County

Waldo County

Franklin 
County

Hancock 
County

Kennebec 
County

Oxford County
Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

Recovery Residence Rates

2023-2024 GA Housing Maximums
Recovery Residences

The following Recovery Residence maximums are in effect from 10/1/2023- 9/30/2024

Aroostook 
County

Recovery Residence Rates



[For use when adopting updated appendices only without amending the body of an existing GA 
ordinance] 

Rev. 8-2021 

MUNICIPALITY OF _______________ 

GENERAL ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE 

Pursuant to 22 M.R.S. § 4305(1), the municipal officers of the Municipality of 

________________________, after notice and hearing, hereby amend the municipal General 

Assistance Ordinance by repealing and replacing appendices A through H of the existing 

ordinance with the attached appendices A through H, which shall be in effect from October 1, 

202__ through September 30, 202__.  This amendment will be filed with the Maine Department of 

Health & Human Services (DHHS) pursuant to 22 M.R.S. § 4305(4), and a copy of the ordinance 

and amended appendices shall be available for public inspection at the municipal office along with 

a copy of the 22 M.R.S. chapter 1161.  

Signed this _______ day of ________________, 20___, by the municipal officers: 

__________________________  ________________________________ 

(Print Name)        (Signature) 

__________________________ ________________________________ 

(Print Name)        (Signature) 

__________________________  ________________________________ 

(Print Name)        (Signature) 

__________________________  ________________________________ 

(Print Name)        (Signature) 

_________________________  ________________________________ 

(Print Name)        (Signature) 

[Please send a copy of the enactment page only to  DHHS, 109 Capitol Street, SHS 11, Augusta, ME 04330-0011]



MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of September 18, 2023 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
Selectboard Meeting Minutes 2 

September 18, 2023 3 
 4 
 5 

Selectboard Members Present: Chair John Macauley, Martha Dudman, Rick Mooers, Geoffrey 6 
Wood, Wendy Littlefield 7 
 8 
Town Officials Present: Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Town Clerk 9 
Claire Woolfolk, Finance Director Jake Wright, Fire Chief Mike Bender, Public Works Director 10 
Brian Henkel 11 
 12 
Members of the public were also present. 13 

 14 
I. Call to order at 6:00 p.m. 15 

Chair Macauley called the meeting to order at 6:00PM.   16 
 17 

II. Executive Session 18 
A. Pursuant to 1 MRS§405(6)(A) Personnel Matters, to discuss possible staff re-alignment 19 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved with Mr. Wood seconding, to enter into Executive Session, 20 
Pursuant to 1 MRS§405(6)(A) Personnel Matters, to discuss possible staff re-alignment. 21 
Motion approved 5-0. 22 
 23 
The Board entered into Executive Session at 6:00PM. 24 
 25 
The Board returned from Executive Session at 6:29PM. 26 
 27 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, to return to regular meeting 28 
session. 29 
Motion approved 5-0. 30 
 31 
III. Minutes 32 

A. Approval of minutes from September 5, 2023 meeting 33 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, approval of the Minutes of 34 
September 5, 2023 as presented. 35 
Motion approved 5-0. 36 

 37 
IV. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 38 

A. Accept resignation of Treasurer, Jacob Wright, effective end of day October 6, 2023 39 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, acceptance of resignation of 40 
Treasurer, Jacob Wright, effective end of day October 6, 2023, with deep regret. 41 
Motion approved 5-0. 42 

 43 
V. Consent Agenda 44 

A. Department Reports:  Highway, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and Solid 45 
Waste, Police Department 46 

B. Investment Committee minutes from May 9, 2023 meeting 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of September 18, 2023 
Page 2 
 

C. Thank you letters from the American Red Cross, LifeFlight Foundation, MDI Community 1 
Campfire Coalition, and Neighborhood House 2 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, acceptance of the Consent Agenda as 3 
presented.  4 
Motion approved 5-0. 5 

 6 
VI. Selectboard’s Reports 7 
There were no Selectboard Member reports presented. 8 

 9 
VII. Unfinished Business 10 

A. Consider soliciting appointments to the Comprehensive Plan Committee 11 
Clerk Woolfolk reported having two applicants for the committee. Mr. Mooers suggested some 12 
previous committee members might still be willing to continue with the committee.  Mr. Mooers 13 
hoped a revision of the Comprehensive Plan would be ready for review and approval by Town 14 
Meeting. 15 
 16 
Ms. Dudman suggested advertising the vacancies.   17 
 18 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, consideration of the solicitation 19 
plan for committee appointments and consider the implementation of a timeline for the work. 20 
 21 
Manager Lunt requested Mr. Mooers mention it at the next LUZO Advisory Committee meeting.  22 
 23 
 Motion approved 5-0. 24 
 25 

B. Review proposals/quotes from solicitation for a laddered maturity portfolio of CDs, 26 
treasury bonds, US Government agency obligation, and/or similar investments for 27 
$5,000,000 initial investment after substantial tax collection in fiscal year 2024 and 28 
consider reallocation of funds 29 

Finance Director Wright reported that as authorized in June, proposals were solicited for tying up 30 
funds for a period of time, before pulling them back into operations as needed.  Director Wright 31 
recommended keeping the funds with Bar Harbor Banking and Trust (BHBT).  BHBT proposed 32 
a 5.25% rate on the new Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) fund that allows the funds to remain liquid, 33 
plus increasing the rates on other existing ICS funds the Town has to 4.25%.  This option 34 
requires the least amount of administration and allows the flexibility to pull funding out if 35 
deemed necessary.  The rates exceed money market account rates the Town is receiving 36 
elsewhere. Mr. Lichtenstein noted that Director Wright reviewed a number of proposals; BHBT 37 
provided the offer in the best interest of the Town, in his opinion. 38 
 39 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, accepting Bar Harbor Banking and 40 
Trust’s offer of 5.25% new ICS account for an initial investment of $5,000,000.00 and accept 41 
their increase the existing operating ICS 3.85% to 4.25% as presented by Director Wright. 42 
Motion approved 4-0-1 (Dudman in Abstention). 43 

 44 
VIII. New Business 45 

A. Consideration of proposed “Breaking the Silence of Domestic Abuse” month 46 
proclamation 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of September 18, 2023 
Page 3 
 
This item was tabled until the October 2, 2023 Meeting. 1 
 2 

B. Request Liquor License Extension through October 12, 2023 - Asti-Kim Corporation 3 
/DBA Asticou Inn 4 

Clerk Woolfolk explained the Asticou Inn was not reapplying, due to an upcoming change in 5 
ownership.  The current owners are requesting an extension of their license.  New owners will 6 
reapply next year.  The State has approved such an extension. 7 
 8 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, Liquor License Extension 9 
through October 12, 2023 - Asti-Kim Corporation /DBA Asticou Inn as presented. 10 
Motion approved 5-0. 11 
 12 

C. Consider de-activating the Village Center Planning Committee 13 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, de-activating the Village Center 14 
Planning Committee as presented. 15 
Motion approved 5-0. 16 
 17 

D. Request authorization for Superintendent Jacobs to execute all necessary documents on 18 
behalf of the Town to purchase a new 2023-2024 RAM 1500 crew cab 4x4 truck from 19 
Darlings Ram in Ellsworth at their bid price of $45,987.00 using funds from Public 20 
Works Equipment Reserve account number 4050100-24500 with an unencumbered 21 
balance of approximately $330,244.99 as of August 31, 2023 22 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorizing Highway Superintendent 23 
Jacobs to execute all necessary documents on behalf of the Town to purchase a new 2023-2024 24 
RAM 1500 crew cab 4x4 truck from Darlings Ram in Ellsworth at their bid price of $45,987.00 25 
using funds from Public Works Equipment Reserve account number 4050100-24500 with an 26 
unencumbered balance of approximately $330,244.99 as of August 31, 2023 as presented. 27 
Motion approved 5-0. 28 
 29 

E. Consider authorizing Public Works Director, Brian Henkel, to sign and execute 30 
documents for the use of $25,250 from the Wastewater Capital Reserve Account 31 
#4050500-24501 with a current unencumbered balance of approximately $124,744 and, 32 
$25,000 from the FY-24 appropriations budget line Sewer Inspection Services #1550552-33 
54530 for a total amount of $50,250 to fund the fourth year of Vortex Company’s five-34 
year plan to video inspect, clean and GIS map the Town’s sanitary sewer collection 35 
system 36 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorizing Public Works Director, 37 
Brian Henkel, to sign and execute documents for the use of $25,250 from the Wastewater Capital 38 
Reserve Account #4050500-24501 with a current unencumbered balance of approximately 39 
$124,744 and, $25,000 from the FY-24 appropriations budget line Sewer Inspection Services 40 
#1550552-54530 for a total amount of $50,250 to fund the fourth year of Vortex Company’s 41 
five-year plan to video inspect, clean and GIS map the Town’s sanitary sewer collection system 42 
as presented. 43 
Motion approved 5-0. 44 
 45 

F. Consider amendment to Section 8.6.1 of the Town’s current personnel policy entitled 46 
“Sick Leave” as described in memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of September 18, 2023 
Page 4 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, amendment to Section 8.6.1 of the 1 
Town’s current personnel policy entitled “Sick Leave” as described in memo from Finance 2 
Director, Jake Wright as presented. 3 
Motion approved 5-0. 4 
 5 

G. Consider amendment to Section 6.4 of the Town’s current personnel policy entitled 6 
“Compensatory Time” as described in memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright 7 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval of amendment to Section 8 
6.4 of the Town’s current personnel policy entitled “Compensatory Time” as described in memo 9 
from Finance Director, Jake Wright as presented. 10 
Motion approved 5-0. 11 
 12 

H. Review of DRAFT Budget Development Schedule 13 
Manager Lunt noted the schedule will be essentially the same as last year’s timeframe.  Clerk 14 
Woolfolk suggested the Board consider condensing the third-party requests back to a single 15 
night, now that some of the organizations are requesting via a MOU.  Mr. Wood wondered if 16 
additional groups would be invited to request the same way.  Mr. Wood noted that scheduling 17 
during the school break can be problematic for some of those that want to attend.   18 
 19 
No action was necessary. 20 

 21 
IX. Other Business 22 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 23 
Ms. Littlefield thanked the Public Works Department, Fire Department and Police Department 24 
for their help and support during the recent hurricane. 25 

 26 
X. Treasurer’s Warrants 27 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 28 
Town Invoices AP#2417 9/9/2023 $1,752,049.02 
 AP#2418 9/19/2023 $96,928.57 
Total   $1,848,977.59 

 29 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, approval and signature of 30 
Treasurer’s Warrant as shown above. 31 
Motion approved 5-0. 32 
 33 

B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown below: 34 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2415 

 
9/6/2023 

 
$4,268.00 

 AP#2416 9/13/2023 $67,674.69 
Town Payroll PR#2407 9/15/2023 $170,645.60 
Total   $242,588.29 

 35 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of signed Treasurer’s 36 
Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown above. 37 
Motion approved 4-0-1 (Littlefield in Abstention). 38 
 39 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of September 18, 2023 
Page 5 
 

C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 1 
Warrants as shown below: 2 

School Invoices AP#3 9/6/2023 $59,704.76 
School Payroll PR#6 9/15/2023 $100,427.49 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
V#2401 

 
9/19/2023 

 
($113,928.03) 

Total   $46,204.22 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, acknowledgement of Treasurer’s 3 
Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown above. 4 
Motion approved 5-0. 5 
Grand Total   $2,137,770.10 

 6 
 7 

XI. Adjournment 8 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to adjourn the Meeting. 9 
Motion approved 5-0. 10 
 11 
The Meeting adjourned at 6:50PM. 12 
 13 
 14 
Respectfully Submitted, 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
Geoffrey Wood 19 





CONSENT AGENDA 

  





7 



Town Clerk

Durlin Lunt
Tuesday, September 19, 2023 9:15 AM
Averel Wilson; Dan McKay; Donald Graves (04662gravy@gmail.com); Ham Clark; James
Blame; Jennifer M. Buchanan; John Boynton; Kathe McCoy (k.gatesmccoy@zirkel.us);
Martha Dudman; Matt Hart; Nancy Ho; Rick Wheeler; Brian Henkel; Town Clerk; Wendy
Wood

Cc: Brian Henkel; Peter Bronson; Jake Wright
Subject: FW: Maine LWCF Pre-Application Site Inspection 2024 Grant Cycle

I have filled out the application to allow us to have a site visit for the skating rink compressor project.

Durlin E. Lunt
MPA ,CMM
Town Manager
Mount Desert, Maine
manager@mtdesertg

(207) 276-5531

From: Google Forms <forms-receipts-noreply@google.com>

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 9:13 AM
To: Durlin Lunt <manager@mtdesert.org>

Subject: Maine LWCF Pre-Application Site Inspection 2024 Grant Cycle

I ge*il ft om frs i qJ$ftrep1y@googIe
.—- ‘ ..

4

I CAUTNdl originated
[endand krtcontent ihfe , , tIEI 1I’ I

Thanks for filling out Maine LWCF Pre-Application Site Inspection 2024 Grant
Cycle

Here’s what was received.

From:
Sent:
To:

1



Maine LWCF Pre-Application Site Inspection 2024
Grant Cycle
To assure that the proposed project area is suited to the proposed use and would be eligible for grant funding, the
LWCF application process requires a pre-application site inspection by Grants & Community Recreation Program
staff.

If your community intends to submit a grant application by the June 28, 2024 deadline then you must complete this
form requesting a site inspection. Requests can be made any time between Mayl and December 31 , 2023, but the
sooner the better!

Please bear in mind that only municipal, school district county, state or tribal government agencies are eligible for
LWCF assistance.

After successful completion of this form you will be contacted by the Grants and Community Recreation Program to
schedule a site inspection.

Email

managermtdesert.org

Eligibility Category - select one *

City/Town/Village

Schoo! District

County

State

Tribai

Name of Eligible Govt Agency *

Town of Mount Desert

2



Brief Project Description (type of project, location, estimated cost etc.) *

compressor system for municipal skating rink to lengthen the skating season.

Projected total project budget. *

$500,000

Amount of LWCF assistance you seek k

$250,000

Contact Name *

DurllnE.Lunt

-Email Address *.

mnRnPrtThmtdAcartnrn

Mailing Address *

P.OBox248

City/Town*

Northeast Harbor, Maine

ZipCode* -..-—.--.———--

04662

3



Preferred Telephone *

207-276-5531

CreateypjownGoogIetorm”””””””
- -

rt A.b

4



m:\2023 cc meetings\september 5,2023\september 5, 2023 crm\september 5, 2023crm minutes docx 

 

COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 
 

Learn more about HANCOCK COUNTY by visiting 

www.hancockcountymaine.gov 

Audio recordings of the meeting are available upon request 

 
 

The regular meeting of the Hancock County Commissioners was brought to order by 

Commissioner Paradis at 8:30 a.m. on Wednesday September 6, 2023.    Commissioner Clark, 

Commissioner Wombacher, County Administrator Michael Crooker were also present, as well as 

several Department Heads.  The meeting was held using a hybrid format and Department Heads 

and members of the public were able to attend in person or via Zoom. 

 

Adjustments to agenda: none 

MOTION: Move to approve the Agenda as presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed) 

 

Meeting Minutes: 

MOTION: Move to approve the minutes of the August 15, 2023 Special Meeting. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

UT: 

MOTION: Move to approve and file the UT report as presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, 

motion passed) 

 

Airport: 

MOTION: Move to approve and file the Airport report as presented. (Clark/Wombacher 

3-0, motion passed)  

 

EMA: 

MOTION: Move to approve and file the EMA report as presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, 

motion passed) 

 

Sheriff: 

MOTION: Move to reconsider the action taken on August 15, 2023 with regards to the 

purchase of used firearms by deputies except that all proceeds from any sales will 

reimburse ARPA account. Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the sale of one hand gun to each Patrol Deputy if they want to 

purchase from those the Sheriff’s Office is replacing for the sum of $400 per weapon and all 

revenue be used to reimburse the ARPA account. (Paradis/Wombacher 1-2 motion failed) 

 

MOTION: Move to have the proceeds from the gun trade-ins be used to reimburse the 

ARPA account. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Jail: 

http://www.hancockcountymaine.gov/


m:\2023 cc meetings\september 5,2023\september 5, 2023 crm\september 5, 2023crm minutes docx 

 

MOTION: Move to approve for Correction Officer Angela Hall to take an unpaid leave 

from September 9, 2023 until September 19. 2023. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Maintenance: 

MOTION: Move to approve and file the Maintenance report as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

RCC: 

MOTION: Move to approve and file the RCC report as presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, 

motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to accept 911 Dispatcher Walton Kinney’s letter of resignation effective 

August 15, 2023. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

HR: 

MOTION: Move to approve and file the HR report as presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, 

motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to designate Human Resources Officer Mary-Anne Saxl as the County’s 

Public Access Officer. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Treasurer: 

MOTION: Move to approve the monthly bills and warrants as presented. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

The Treasurer’s memo listed the following: 

August GF, Airport and Jail Payroll Warrants #23-31, #23-32, #23-33, #23-34, and #23-35 in the 

aggregate amount of $669,470.06; 

 

August GF, Airport and Jail Expense Warrants #23-43, #23-44, #23-45, #23-46, #23-47, #23-48, 

in the aggregate amount of $1,076,680.23; 

 

August UT Payroll Warrants #24-5, #24-6, #24-7, #24-8 and #24-9, in the aggregate amount of 

$1,372.55; 

 

August UT Expense Warrants #24-3 and #24-4, in the aggregate amount of $3,707.36. 

 

Commissioners: 

Discussion on Section XXIX Retirements of the Hancock County Personnel Policy as presented.  

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Community Benefit Grant Application and Process as 

presented. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to go into Executive Session under MRSA Title 1§405 6(A) for exempt 

employee evaluation, County Administrator. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 



m:\2023 cc meetings\september 5,2023\september 5, 2023 crm\september 5, 2023crm minutes docx 

 

In: 12:31 p.m. 

Out: 12:42 p.m. 

 

MOTION: Move to acknowledge a satisfactory evaluation of the County Administrator 

and to place the evaluation in his personnel file. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to adjourn (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

Meeting was adjourned at 12:52 a.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Patrice Crossman 

Clerk 



Commissioners:
William Clark, District I
John Wombacher, District II
Paul Paradis, District 111/Chair

REC’D SEP 212023

1ichaeI R. Crooker
County Administrator

michaeLcrookeiØhancockcountyinaine.gov

TO: Hancock County Municipal Officials
FROM: County Administrator, Michael Crooker
Date: September 13, 2023
RE: Public Hearing 2024

The Hancock County Commissioners have scheduled a Public Hearing on the
Hancock County 2024 Budget estimates for 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, September

2023 in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, 50 State Street, Ellsworth. I have
attached a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing along with a copy of the Budget
Estimates. Please post and share accordingly. Thank you.

Office: (207) 667-9542 www.ha ncockcountymaine.gov
E-mail: michael.crooker@hancockcountymaine.gov

Fax: (207) 667-1412

COUNTY OF HANCOCK
Commissioners’ Office
50 State Street, Suite 7

Ellsworth, Maine 04605
Learn more about HANCOCK COUNTY by visiting

www.hancockcountymaine.gov



OUNTY OF HANCOCK
RGAN1ZED TERRITORY

BUDGET

BUI GETED APPROPRIATiONS
—

-
-- -- ._

--_ —4-

SERVICES:
Roads and Sri
Roads and Brii
Snow Remove
Solid Waste
Fire Protection
Polling Places
Animal Control
Supervisor/Ro
Clerical Assist
WHCA Transp
Operational Cc
Regional Com
TOTAL SERVI

CAPITAL RESERVE:
E-91 I Costs (f
Ortho Imagery
Environmental
Road Reserve

ges
ges Major Repairs

d Commissioner
nce
rtation Grant

sts
tunications Center
ES:

aintenance)
Mapping Program
lean-up

25,000.00
--

-- 25,000.00
- 95,000.00

35O00.O0
- 79,000.00

- 150.00
- 3,500.00

25,000.00
- 2,500.00

-t00.00
25,100.00

-. aooo.oo

27,000.00

352,750.00
0.05

17,638

370,388

UNC

For Fiscal ear July 1, 2024 June 30, 2025

& First Responders

325,750.00

2,500.00
4,000.00

509.00
20,000.00

TOTAL CAPITAL RESER EIOTHER:

TOTAL OF SERVICES \ND OTHER:

ADMINISTRATION (Up to 5% of total services and other)

TOTAL BUDGETED Al PROPRIATIONS:

Page 2 of 2



COUNTY OF HANCOCK
t NORGANIZED TERRITORY

BUDGET

For FiscI Year July 1 2024 - June 30, 2Q25

COMP JTATION OF ASSESSMENT

TOTAL BUDGETED APPROPRIATIf NS:

DEDUCTIONS: (Estimated)
Local Road Assistance . I 0,000
Excise Taxes ----

Rocky Mt. Trailer Riders I 000
Other (be specific):

interest Revenue 20,000
Miscellaneous 500 71,500

Surplus (Estimate) t64,472
Less: 10% of Expenditures 29939
Est. Surplus Applied: 134,533 134,533

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS: 206,033.00

TAX ASSESSMENT: 164,355

AUTHORIZATION:
Date: - HANCOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Paul Paradis

John Wombacher

William F. Clark

2024-2025 Tax Assessment: If 4,355
2023-2024 Tax Assessment: - 11 9,107
Increase/Decrease: - 4,752
Percentage increase/decrease: -1 .09%
LDI Assessment Limit 2023 is 707, 86.36
Allowable percentage Increase is .31%

Page 1 of 2



C
o
u
n
ty

o
f

H
a
n
c
o
c
k

2
0
2
4

B
u
d
g
e
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a
ry

o
f

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

D
ep

t.
#

A
cc

o
u

n
t

T
it

le
(D

ep
ar

tm
en

t)
2
0
2
3

B
u

d
g

et

2
0
2
4

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

H
ea

d

2
0
2

4
2
0
2
4

B
.A

.C
.

2
0
2
4

2
4

v
s

2
3

A
p
p
ro

v
ed

%
In

c/
(D

ec
)

C
o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s

2
E

m
er

g
en

cy
M

an
ag

em
en

t
A

g
en

cy
-

E
M

A
97

,4
19

97
,6

46
97

,6
46

0.
2%

3
D

is
tr

ic
y
A

tt
o
rn

ey
’s

O
ff

ic
e

53
,6

00
45

,5
00

45
,5

00
-1

7.
8%

4
C

ou
nt

y
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
er

s
0

0
0

0.
0%

5
T

re
as

u
re

r
80

,0
00

26
6,

85
3

26
6,

85
3

70
.0

%

6
B

ui
ld

in
gs

&
M

ai
n
te

n
an

ce
53

,9
50

53
,9

50
53

,9
50

0.
0%

7
R

C
C

(R
eg

io
n
al

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n
s)

17
4,

00
0

17
9,

32
0

17
9,

32
0

3.
0%

8
P

ro
b

at
e,

R
eg

is
tr

y
of

17
9,

90
0

18
0,

90
0

18
0,

90
0

0.
6%

9
D

ee
d
s,

R
eg

is
tr

y
of

84
7,

95
0

75
4,

00
0

69
9,

00
0

-2
1.

3%

10
S

h
er

if
f’

s
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
31

,3
20

8,
50

0
8,

50
0

-2
68

.5
%

12
T

ow
n

C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

(S
h

er
if

f)
54

7,
32

6
48

3,
75

5
51

6,
21

0
-6

.0
%

13
C

iv
il

P
ro

c
e
ss

17
5,

00
0

13
5,

00
0

13
5,

00
0

-2
9.

6%

14
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
T

ec
h

n
o

lo
g

y
(I

T
)

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
0.

0%

20
H

ea
lt

h
In

su
ra

n
ce

21
2,

60
9

23
1,

82
2

22
0,

51
2

3.
6%

35
A

ni
m

al
C

o
n
tr

o
l

0
58

,0
42

58
,0

42
10

0.
0%

46
D

ru
g

T
as

k
F

o
rc

e
18

5,
74

3
18

3,
96

6
13

9,
11

4
-3

3.
5%

51
PI

L
T

F
u

n
d

s
0

0
0

0.
0%

T
ra

n
s

T
o

B
u
d
g
et

-
F

u
n
d

B
al

an
ce

42
1,

00
0

0.
0%

R
ev

en
ue

T
ot

al
s

$3
,0

64
,8

17
$
2
,6

8
4
,2

5
5

$
2
,6

0
5
,5

4
7

$0
$0

K
:\2

02
4

B
U

D
G

E
T

\a
20

24
H

A
N

C
O

C
K

C
O

U
N

T
Y

B
U

D
G

E
T

W
IP

M
LC

09
-1

7-
23

to
w

ith
C

om
m

C
ol

um
ns



C
o
u
n
ty

o
f

H
a
n

c
o

c
k

C
o

m
p

ar
at

iv
e

S
u

m
m

ar
y

o
f

R
ev

en
u

es
&

E
x

p
en

se
s

20
24

B
u

d
g

et

D
ep

t.
H

ea
d

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s

B
A

C
$

-
B

ud
ge

t
D

ep
t.

#
D

ep
t.

N
am

e
R

ev
en

ue
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

R
ev

en
ue

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
R

ev
en

ue
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

R
ev

en
ue

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

2
E

m
er

g.
M

gm
t.

A
ge

nc
y

(E
M

A
)

97
,6

46
24

1
66

8
97

,6
46

24
1,

66
8

3
D

is
tr

ic
t

A
tt

or
ne

y
45

,5
00

67
5,

69
5

45
,5

00
62

2,
79

5

4
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s
0.

00
41

6,
01

2
0.

00
40

9,
51

2

5
T

re
as

ur
er

26
6,

85
3

20
5,

76
7

26
6,

85
3

18
9,

62
2

6
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
53

,9
50

72
1,

25
6

53
,9

50
72

3,
43

9

7
R

C
C

(D
is

pa
tc

h)
17

9,
32

0
1,

20
0,

61
7

17
9,

32
0

1,
17

0,
16

7

8
P

ro
ba

te
18

0,
90

0
28

5,
57

3
18

0,
90

0
28

5,
57

3

9
D

ee
ds

75
4,

00
0

34
6,

44
6

69
9,

00
0

34
6,

44
6

10
S

he
ri

ff
8,

50
0

2,
71

7,
36

6
8,

50
0

2,
44

4,
60

1

11
Ja

il
C

A
P

0
0
0

2,
21

1,
04

2
0.

00
2,

21
1,

04
2

12
T

ow
n

C
on

tr
ac

ts
(S

he
ri

ff
)

48
3,

75
5

51
6,

21
0

51
6,

21
0

51
6,

21
0

13
C

iv
il

P
ro

ce
ss

13
5,

00
0

18
6,

27
8

13
5,

00
0

17
6,

27
8

14
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
&

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

(I
T)

5,
00

0
30

2,
72

9
5,

00
0

29
0,

72
9

16
D

eb
t

&
O

ve
rl

ay
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

17
U

M
O

&
H

C
V

FF
0.

00
13

2,
60

0
0.

00
12

7,
72

0

20
H

ea
lt

h
In

su
ra

nc
e,

A
ir

po
rt

&
U

T
23

1,
82

2
1,

38
9,

48
0

22
0,

51
2

1,
32

4,
01

0

30
R

es
er

v
es

0.
00

70
,7

08
0.

00
70

,7
08

35
A

ni
m

al
C

on
tr

ol
58

,0
42

49
,9

29
58

,0
42

49
,9

29

46
D

ru
g

T
as

k
F

or
ce

18
3,

96
6

37
6,

70
2

13
9,

11
4

13
9,

11
4

51
PI

L
T

F
un

ds
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

T
o

ta
ls

2
,6

8
4
,2

5
5

12
,0

46
,0

79
2,

60
5,

54
7

11
,3

39
,5

63

K
:\

20
24

B
U

D
G

E
T

\a
20

24
H

A
N

C
O

C
K

C
O

U
N

T
Y

B
U

D
G

E
T

W
IP

M
L

C
09

-1
7-

23
to

w
ith

C
om

m
C

ol
um

ns



I



 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  





Town Clerk

From: Durlin Lunt
Sent: Monday, September 25, 2023 9:42 AM
To: Town Clerk
Subject: FW: SB Meeting Agenda 2023-1O-02.docx

Old business; Recommendation from Harbor Committee concerning proposed Friends of Acadia Event at the Marina
Green.

Durlin E. Lunt
MPA ,CMM
Town Manager
Mount Desert, Maine
manager@mtdesert.org

(207) 276-5531

From: John Lemoine <harbormaster@mtdesert.org>
Sent: Monday, September 25, 2023 9:39 AM
To: Durlin Lunt <manager@mtdesert.org>
Subject: RE: SB Meeting Agenda 2023-1O-02.docx

Durlin,

Here is the motion from the HC minutes.

1. Eric Stiles and Jennifer Byer from Friends of Acadia(FOA) presented and discussed the usage of the
Marina parking and green space for their Gala 2024. The committee and FOA discussed parking
options, permitted uses, and considerations of the neighborhood.
Motion by Moore to approve the request from FOA(option one, no tents over parking spaces),
seconded by Litchfield. Motion carried.

JZoIm fifefiobze

Harbormaster
Town of Mountdesert
40 Harbor Drive
P.O. Box 237
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662
207-276-5737 Phone
207-276-5741 Fax

1



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
PUBLIC SPACE SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION

Application Fee $10.00
NOTE - Applications are due 60 days prior for major events and

30 days prior to event for minor events.

PERMIT #: 1’ op3 DATE OF EVENT: AF ° TIME: 5
: . j ij

DATE APPLICATION RECEWED: ‘2L._.- # Expected to attend

PUBLIC SPACE REQUESTED: Please check: Northeast Harbor Marina Green y’
Seal Harbor Village Green Suminsby Park . Otter Creek Playground______
Hall Quarry Park __ Pond’s End______

TYPE OF EVENT MAJO R MINOR (SEE POLICY FOR DEF1NINTIONS)

circle one)

APPLICANT: trj ka-&

MAILING ADDRESS: 4 C5*uJ ( } %14 14a4 t4j

PHONE: . . 2O7.2S’ 34O

___________

(Home) (Business) (cellular)
OTHER CONTACT INFO:___________________________________

AGENT: C 5fl ([)
(Print) I (Signa e)

AGENT MAILING ADDRESS: ‘Zfk3e t$ CiJy-a

PHONE: . 2O7 7Q. fjQ

_____________

(Agent home) (Agent busipess (AgeñT’cellular)
OTHER CONTACT iNFO: -4j I crq

(Agent eitiail) J (Agent fax)
What is the tax status ofthe applicant? (Non-profit)

______________________________

Does the applicant propose that amplified sound be used for event? Yes V” No

______

Ifyes, include description:
- .--- --.--- -----.-

USE REQUESTED (Applicant, review the Public Space Use Policy, then explain whatyou want to do)
Stc c1qIj • . .

It should be noted that it is a public space andyour event will notpreclude other peoplefrom using the space;
however once approvea no other special events will be permitted at that location while your event is takingplace.

Approved this

____day

of ,20, by a majority of the Board of Selectmen:

Pagel
Public Space Special Event Application and



Friends of Acadia’s 35th Annual Benefit Auction
Saturday, August 10, 2024, 5:30-11 p.m.

Benefit Timeline Week-Of — DRAFT

Monday, August 5

Morning Wallace Events Arrives with tents

Tuesday, August 6

Morning Main Tents go up

Wednesday, August 7

Morning Event Tent installation completed in AM (side wall, gutters)
AV/Lighting equipment setup

Thursday, August 8

Tables set up in Dining Tent

Friday, August 9

Rest Room Trailers delivered

Saturday, August 10:

• Estimated Guests: 400-450
• Estimated Staff: 50

2:30 PM Band arrives to set up on stage

5:00 PM Ready to welcome guests

5:30 PM Guests arrive for Cocktail Reception & Silent Auction

7:30 PM Guests are seated for dinner

8:15 PM Live Program begins

8:20 PM Live Auction Begins

8:45/9:00 PM Live Auction ends
Dessert served
Band strikes up for dancing

11:00PM Event Ends

Sunday, August 11 and Monday, August 12

Event Space Cleaned, All Tents/Equipment Removed



Dear Members of the Northeast Harbor Board of Selectmen,

We are writing to request your consideration and support for an exciting initiative that aims to benefit
both the treasured Acadia National Park and the local Northeast Harbor community. Enclosed you will
find our Public Space Event Application for hosting our Friends of Acadia 35th Annual Benefit on August
10th, 2024, on the green at the Northeast Harbor Marina.

The primary objective of the proposed benefit fundraiser is to provide crucial support to Acadia National
Park through the Friends ofAcadia organization. This support will aid in the preservation, conservation,
and enhancement of the park for current and future generations. Equally important, however is our
commitment to fostering a strong sense of community and collaboration within Northeast Harbor.

We firmly believe that this benefit fundraiser presents a unique opportunity to forge stronger ties
between the Friends of Acadia, and the local community. Through this event, we aim to showcase the
spirit of unity that characterizes our town and highlight the significance ofworking together to maintain
the beauty and vitality of our shared environment.

We recognize the importance of adhering to the Public Space Use Policy while planning and executing
this event. To this end, we anticipate the need for certain pragmatic exceptions that will allow us to
create a memorable and impactiul fundraiser. Attached you will find an exhaustive timeline detailing the
event and its setup, designed to offer a comprehensive snapshot of some of these practical adaptations.
Your insights and guidance in this matter are invaluable, and we welcome the opportunity to engage in a
productive discussion to ensure that all concerns are addressed comprehensively.

We kindly request the opportunity to present our proposal in person during an upcoming Board of
Selectmen meeting. Your insights and feedback are essential to refine our plans and ensuring that all
aspects are thoughtfully considered.

Thank you for your time, consideration, and continued dedication to the well-being of Northeast Harbor.
We look forward to the prospect of working with you.

Sincerely,



A

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
PUBLIC SPACE SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION

Application Fee — $10.00
NOTE - Applications are due 60 days prior for major events and

30 days prior to event for minor events.

PERMIT : J5 :2o23 DATE OF EVENT: 2-1, 2oZiLf TIME: / -_____

DATE APPLICATIONRECEIVED:
3 ‘7’o23

PUBLIC SPACE REQUESTED: Please check: Northeast Harbor Marina Green

________

Seal Harbor Village Green Suminsby Park

______

Otter Creek Playground

_______

Hall Quarry Park

____

Pon s End______

TYPE OF EVENT — MINOR SEE POLICY FOR DEFININTIONS)

(circle one)

APPLICANT: tU) p MT(Print) (Signature)MAILING ADDRESS: 3\4 \13

,,
iW ‘pf-1

PHONE: 3\ 0
-

-(Agent home)
OTHER CONTACT INFO:

___________________ _____________

(Agent email) (Agent fax)What is the tax status of the applicant’?(

_______________________

Does the applicant propose that amplified sound be used for event? YesIf yes, include description:

Public Space Special Event Application and
Public Spaces Use Policy
Approved by the Board of Selectmen August 17. 2015

1c
‘\€ c\

_____

20 , by a majority of the Board of Selectmen: 7

/4 -

Page 1 of 15

-

PHONE:

________________

(Home) ‘ (Business)
OTHER CONTACT INFO: t

Email) I
AGENT: L4f a0J\

(Print)
A(IENT MAILING ADDRESS: ‘P

Signatur)
(f,c, kcic

(

(Agent business)

4-

USE REQUESTED (Appliccint, review the Pith/ic 5pac Use Policy, then expiain ii’hat you nun! to do)D4 kgIJ Di ,4’2-cI -‘ 1\ Ic*-

i iLft tp \t1. ,wJ r
-,

6A4k S__-

‘‘ _ Approved this day of

I



civcL

p 3O7Ø 44k* 2Lc
U\ ic



Application to Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 

October 2, 2023 

 

Permit #15-2023 

Seal Harbor Village Green on Saturday July 27, 2024 

 

Applicant 

Garden Club of MDI 

Tracy Combs, Representative 

310-804-7481 

tracy01combs@gmail.com 

 

In Consultation with  

Acting Chief of Police, David Kerns. Bar Harbor and Mount Desert Police Dept. 

207-276-5111  

 

Brian Henkel, Mount Desert Department of Public Works 

207-276-5743 

director@mtdesert.org 

 

 

 

Purpose of permit 

The Garden Club’s biennial Open Garden Day will take place in Seal Harbor on 

July 27, 2024. Six private gardens will be open to 750 ticketed visitors from 10 am 

to 3:30 pm. 

 

This tour raises $40,000 for dozens of nature and outdoor projects around MDI, 

like Charlotte Rhoades Butterfly Park, Maine Seacoast Mission, and Wild Gardens 

of Acadia. 

 

Open Garden Day has taken place every two years since the 90’s.  This is the first 

time we have planned to go car-free, using shuttles and vans on the 2.66 mile route 

along the shoreline of Seal Harbor. We are committed to minimizing traffic and 

congestion for the community. 

  

The “park once” policy puts cars on the east end of Cooksey Drive. We are 

requesting use of the Village Green for a 20x50 tent (application for Temporary 

Structure submitted upon approval of this permit) for registration and box lunch 

seating. 

mailto:tracy01combs@gmail.com
mailto:director@mtdesert.org


The following attachments show: 

• details of entry and exit for visitor parking,  

• docent and volunteer parking,  

• shuttle route,  

• garden locations,  

• and suggested police direction areas 

 

Overview 

 

Red shows .75 miles on east Cooksey Drive for parking 200 visitor cars, as well as 

designated parking for 60 docents and volunteers  

Yellow shows exit out Rock Garden Drive (no parking) to Rte 3 

Blue shows route of shuttles 

Green dots show location of gardens 

Orange circles show suggested locations of police and volunteer traffic direction 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Shuttle route 2.66 miles from Rock Garden Drive to Little Long Pond gate 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Garden locations 

#1 McAlpin Farm  

Main registration and tours 

 

#2  - 65 Cooksey Drive 

#3  - 60 Cooksey Drive 

#4  - 16 Cooksey Drive 

#5  - 238 Peabody Drive 

#6  - 25 Back Cove Lane 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 



Proposed tent on Village Green 

Secondary registration and welcome 

Seating for box lunch 

Information on GCMDI partners 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Parking for 30 Docent and volunteer cars 

 

 

 



Parking for 12 Docent and volunteer cars 

 

 

 

 

NOTES 

Visitors generally complete the tour within 2 - 3 hours, evenly spread through the 

day. At a maximum of 750 -800 visitors, allowing at least 2 per car, half in the 

morning and half in the afternoon, parking for 200+ cars should be sufficient. 

Police presence is vital to prevent tour traffic on Cooksey Drive west of Rock 

Garden Drive, allowing residential and Seal Harbor Yacht Club access only, via 

Steamboat Wharf. 

 

Shuttles are 10 electric Acadia GEMs rated for 35 mph roads. They carry 6 

passengers each. They will be supplemented by small 12-passenger sprinter vans. 

Visitors will be encouraged to carpool to Cooksey Drive parking. 

 

Going forward, it is our hope that more events around MDI will choose the model 

of reducing the use of private cars. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Tracy Combs 

 

Edited Thursday 9/28/2023 7am 



Memorandum of Understanding 

Town of Tremont and Town of Mount Desert 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made between The Town of Tremont whose 
office is located at 20 Harbor Drive, Tremont, Maine, herin referred to as “Tremont,” and The 
Town of Mount Desert, whose office is located at 21 Sea Street, Mount Desert, Maine herin 
referred to as “Mount Desert.” 

1. Purpose of MOU 
a. This document is designed to designate the respec�ve responsibili�es of Tremont 

and Mount Desert with respect to the administra�on of a Community Resilience 
Partnership Community Ac�on Grant.  The towns will share personnel focused on 
the implementa�on of the town’s climate and ac�on and community resilience 
priori�es. 

2. Process 
a. The Town of Mount Desert will receive grant funding from the State of Maine and 

will be responsible for payments. 
 

3. Dura�on 
a. Twenty-two months. An�cipated comple�on date of May 2025. 

3. Project Scope 
a. 23 hours of support each week for 22 months for a total of 2024 hours. 
b. 80% of these hours to be spent on Tasks 1-6 as described in grant applica�on. 

The work will take place in both communi�es. 
c. Four hundred hours will be evenly divided between the two towns. Tremont will 

focus on Task 7 food produc�on and working waterfront. Mount Desert will focus 
on task 8 vehicle fleet electrifica�on. 

4.  
Amendments to MOU 
a. This agreement may be amended by mutual consent of both par�es. 

 

 

 

 

 



This agreement shall be approved by the duly authorized representa�ve of Mount Desert’s and 
Tremont’s Selectboards. 

 

Town Manager Town of Mount Desert Town Manager Town of Tremont 

 

Printed Name____________________  Printed Name___________________ 

 

Signature________________________ Signature________________________ 

 

Date____________________________ Date_____________________________ 

 

As authorized by vote of the Mount   As authorized by vote of the Tremont 

Desert Selectboard at their mee�ng on Selectboard at their mee�ng on 

Date__________________________  Date____________________________ 

 

 

 







 

To: Selectboard 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Versant Power Updated Project Cost Reconciliation 

Date: September 28, 2023 

On October 17th, 2022 Public Works Director, Tony Smith, updated the Selectboard regarding an invoice 

from Versant Power (Versant) for the work done on the Northeast Harbor Village Center Improvement 

project (Project). The original estimate for the electrical work by Versant was $488,377. The amount of 

the invoice received was $884,817, a difference of $396,440. The invoice from Versant contained no 

additional information to explain the cost overrun. 

Since that time the Town, along with legal counsel and Project consultants Haley Ward, have worked to 

develop an equitable agreement to cover cost overruns on the Project and to provide adequate 

justification for those overruns. The included Northeast Harbor Project Cost Reconciliation includes the 

individual scope items that contributed to the overrun and further details regarding the reasons for 

those overruns. The proposed Total Adjusted Invoice Amount, including all overruns, is $683,882 or 

$195,505 over the original estimate. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Encl: Northeast Harbor Project Cost Reconciliation 

Memorandum 



N
O

RT
H

EA
ST

 H
AR

BO
R 

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

ST
 R

EC
O

N
CI

LI
AT

IO
N

 - 
VE

RS
AN

T 
PO

W
ER

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

 A
ss

ig
ne

d 
to

 T
ow

n
9/

27
/2

02
3

In
cr

ea
se

s 
to

 O
rig

in
al

 E
st

im
at

e
O

rig
in

al
 

Ac
tu

al
 C

os
t

Pr
oj

ec
t C

os
ts

 
In

cr
ea

se
s

O
rig

in
al

 E
st

im
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
ts

 
$6

36
,3

83
Le

ss
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Fe

e 
Pa

id
$6

5,
00

0
Le

ss
 V

er
sa

nt
 C

os
t S

ha
re

 fo
r T

hr
ee

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
s

$8
3,

00
6

N
et

 R
em

ai
ni

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t f

ro
m

 O
rig

in
al

 E
st

im
at

e
$4

88
,3

77
$7

5,
64

7
H

ig
he

r i
nt

er
na

l l
ab

or
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s 

fo
r p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
, r

e-
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
   

 
$2

7,
80

3
H

ig
he

r e
xt

er
na

l e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
ue

 to
 d

es
ig

n 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
up

da
te

d 
pl

an
s

$5
,4

24
H

ig
he

r l
eg

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

os
ts

 fo
r m

or
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

$6
8,

27
9

Pr
oj

ec
t c

om
pl

ex
ity

 c
al

le
d 

fo
r g

re
at

er
 o

n-
si

te
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

$1
8,

35
2

H
ig

he
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
st

 d
ue

 to
 in

fla
tio

na
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
fo

r l
ab

or
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 
$1

95
,5

05
To

ta
l I

nc
re

as
es

 

$6
83

,8
82

To
ta

l A
dj

us
te

d 
In

vo
ic

e 
A

m
ou

nt

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
st

:  
 T

he
 s

co
pe

 o
f w

or
k 

fo
r t

he
 e

le
ct

ric
al

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
jo

b 
w

as
 n

ot
 fi

rm
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 e

st
im

at
e 

w
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

Se
ve

ra
l a

lig
nm

en
t a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 w

er
e 

pu
rs

ue
d 

w
hi

ch
 re

qu
ire

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

tim
e.

  P
ro

pe
rt

y 
rig

ht
s 

w
er

e 
no

t s
ec

ur
e

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
, s

o 
th

at
 a

ls
o 

re
qu

ire
d 

m
or

e 
st

af
f t

im
e 

an
d 

co
st

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e.

  V
er

sa
nt

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 th

e 
se

ns
iti

ve
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

in
-t

ow
n 

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

n-
si

te
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
as

su
re

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 w

or
k.

  A
nd

 th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ex

te
nd

ed
 lo

ng
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 in
fla

tio
na

ry
 c

os
t i

nc
re

as
es

 fo
r l

ab
or

 a
nd

 m
at

er
ia

ls
.  

 

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

t B
ui

ld
-u

p

Ac
tu

al
 

Co
st

 C
at

eg
or

y
Co

st
In

te
rn

al
 L

ab
or

 - 
Pl

an
ni

ng
, E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

gt
., 

Pr
op

er
ty

$1
73

,3
78

Ex
te

rn
al

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
$2

8,
75

7
Pr

op
er

ty
 R

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

$1
3,

47
0

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

 
$3

67
,2

43
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
$7

3,
27

9
M

at
er

ia
l

$1
75

,7
61

To
ta

l C
os

t
$8

31
,8

88

Le
ss

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Fe
e 

Pa
id

$6
5,

00
0

Le
ss

 V
er

sa
nt

 C
os

t S
ha

re
 fo

r T
hr

ee
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s
$8

3,
00

6
To

ta
l C

ur
re

nt
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t t
o 

Ve
rs

an
t P

ow
er

 
$6

83
,8

82





 

NEW BUSINESS 

  





Town Clerk

From: Eliza Bishop <eliza@milkandhoneykitchen.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2023 10:34 AM
To: Town Clerk
Subject: Fwd: EXPIRED LIQUOR LICENSE: Milk & Honey (10239)

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

[UTION This email originated from outside ofthe organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe. ,. . ..

Hi Claire! The state is letting me do a temp license renewal, and they’re asking for a letter from you guys to do that. I’ve
pasted belowwhat Laurie/Eileen sent- let me know ifyou have Qs!

If you are renewing your liquor license, please print and complete, have the town
sign their approval and send a check with the application in the amount of
$450.00. If the town needs to have a meeting, send copies of the application, the
check and have the town write a letter stating when the meeting will be held and
that they do not see any issues with the approval.

To receive a “temporary license” you will need to provide the following by mailed
hard copies:

Completed application
Check, with appropriate license and filing fee
Letter from the municipal office affirming when the municipal will review
the application

Liquor Licensing & Enforcement

19 Union St.

Augusta, Maine 04330

Kindly,

1



Laurie Pelletier
Licensing Associate
BABLO Liquor Licensing and Enforcement
Phone: 207-287-4468 Email: Iaurie.a.pelletier@maine.gov

8 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04330

2



License No:

Class: By:

Deposit Date:

Amt. Deposited:

Payment Type:

OK with SOS: Yes D No D

Legal Business Entity Applicant Name (corporation, LLC): Business Name (D/B/A):

j” I 1.-( /i ‘d tbdj I -F C-li e.—’ L-- C- fr’ I L- L’- A&’P h o(%A:

Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Physical Location: pj -i Ip.

Ez-n-k (!iS4lO( 3 oL- )lSj 1’
Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Mailing address, if different:

e° r° 1cLfLj 41tz

Mailing address, ifdifferent from DBA address: Email Address:
1tA’

Telephone # Fax #: Business Telephone # Fax #:
voi’c-i(,
Federal Tax Identification Number: Maine Seller Certificate # or Sales Tax #:

Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers Permit: Website address:

j’-il L iV’iE] C\

1. New license or renewal of existing license? New Expected Start date:

L Renewal Expiration Date:
cj)lcj7)

2. The dollar amount of gross income for the licensure period that will end on the expiration date above:

Food: It Beer, Wine or Spirits:

___________

3. Please indicate the type of alcoholic beverage to be sold: (check all that apply)

Malt Liquor (beer) Wine EJ Spirits

STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRiTIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

BuREAu OF ALCOHOLIC BEvERAGEs AND LOTTERY OPERATIONs
DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT

Division Use Only

Application for an On-Premises License

All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Please print legibly.

Section I: Licensee/Applicant(s) Information;
Type of License and Status

Guest Rooms: 0

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 1 of 11



4. Indicate the type oflicense applyingfor: (choose only one)

— Restaurant 0 Class A Restaurant/Lounge U Class A Lounge
(Class I, II, III, IV) (Class XI) (Class X)

Hotel : Hotel — Food Optional EJ Bed & Breakfast
(Class I, II, III, IV) (Class I-A) (Class V)

E Golf Course (included optional licenses, please check ifapply) Auxiliary Mobile Cart
(Class I, II, III, IV)

E Tavern [1 Other:

__________________________________

(Class IV) .

Qualified Caterer • Self-Sponsored Events (Qualified Caterers Only)

Refer Section Vfor the License Fee Schedule ónpage 9

5. Business records are located at the following address:

7, oLO ALAAM

6. Is the licensee/applicant(s) citizens ofthe United States? Yes 0 No

7. Is the licensee/applicant(s) a resident ofthe State ofMaine? Yes No

NOTE: Applicants that are not citizens of the United States are required to file for the license as a

business entity. .

8. Is licensee/applicant(s) a business entity like a corporation or limited liability company?

Yes fl No If Yes, complete Section VII at the end of this application

9. For a licensee/applicant who is a business entity as noted in Section I, does any officer, director, member,
manager, shareholder or partner have in any way an interest, directly or indirectly, in their capacity in any
other business entity which is a holder of a wholesaler license granted by the State of Maine2

Yes - No

Not applicable — licensee/applicant(s) is a sole proprietor

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 2 of 11



10. Is the licensee or applicant for a license receiving, directly or indirectly, any money, credit, thing of value,
endorsement of commercial paper, guarantee of credit or financial assistance of any sort from any person or
entity within or without the State, ifthe person or entity is engaged, directly or indirectly, in the manufacture,
distribution, wholesale sale, storage or transportation of liquor.

0 Yes No

Ifyes, please provide details:
. .

1 1 . Do you own or have any interest in any another Maine Liquor License? 0 Yes FL No

If yes, please list license number, business name, and complete physical location address: (attach additional
pages as needed using the same format)

Name of Business License Number Complete Physical Address

12. List name, date of birth, place of birth for all applicants including any manager(s) employed by the
licensee/applicant. Provide maiden name, if married. (attach additional pages as needed using the same
format)

— —

Full Name DOB Place of Birth

_____

t1A Jh5 ;Sop 9/9/R3

H —

-r_zz

_

Residence address on all the above for previous 5 years
Name Address:
t-Mi V3-Kh(

____

Name Address:

Name Address:

Name Address:

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 3 of 11



13. Will any law enforcement officer directly benefit financially from this license, if issued?

D Yes - No . ..

IfYes, provide name oflaw enforcement officer and department where employed:

I 4. Has the licensee/applicant(s) ever been convicted ofany violation ofthe liquor laws in Maine or any State of
the United States? E Yes - No

If Yes, please provide the following information and attach additional pages as needed using the same
format.

Name:

____________________________________

Date ofConviction:

________________________

Offense: .. Location: .

Disposition:

15. Has the licensee/applicant(s) ever been convicted of any violation of any law, other than minor traffic
violations, in Maine or any State of the United States? E Yes 1 No

If Yes, please provide the following information and attach additional pages as needed using the same
format.

Name:

____________________________________

Date of Conviction:

______________________

Offense:

_____________________________________

Location:

_________________________________

Disposition:

16. Has the licensee/applicant(s) formerly held a Maine liquor license? Yes No

17. Does the licensee/applicant(s) own the premises? Yes El No

IfNo, please provide the name and address of the owner:

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 4 of 11



18. If you are applying for a liquor license for a Hotel or Bed & Breakfast, please provide the number of guest
rooms available:

____________________

19. Please describe in detail the area(s) within the premises to be licensed. This description is in addition to the
diagram in Section VI. (Use additional pages as needed)

C1\F ii 0 J 9 iOO L S jqt J C

20. What is the distance from the premises to the nearest school, school dormitory, church, chapel or parish
house, measured from the main entrance ofthe premises to the main entrance ofthe school, school dormitory,
church, chapel or parish house by the ordinary course of travel?

Name: JCc

Distance:

Section II: Signature of Applicant(s)

By signing this application, the licensee/applicant understands that false statements made on this application are
punishable by law. Knowingly supplying false information on this application is a Class D Offense under Maine’s
Criminal Code, punishable by confinement of up to one year, or by monetary fine of up to $2,000 or by both.

Dated:

SignafDulued Person Signature of Duly Authorized Person

Printed Name of Duly Authorized Person

Please sign and date in blue ink.

Printed Name Duly Authorized Person

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 5 of 11



Section III: For use by Municipal Officers and County Commissioners only

The undersigned hereby certifies that we have complied with the process outlined in 28-A M.R.S. §653 and
approve this on-premises liquor license application.

Dated:

______________________________________

Who is approving this application? Municipal Officers of______________________________________

E County Commissioners of__________________________ County

Please Note: The Municipal Officers or County Commissioners must confirm that the
records of Local Option Votes have been verified that allows this type of establishment to
be licensed by the Bureau for the type of alcohol to be sold for the appropriate days of the
week. Please check this box to indicate this verification was completed.

Signature of Officials Printed Name and Title

This Application will Expire 60 Days from the date of
Municipal or County Approval unless submitted to the Bureau

Included below is the section of Maine’s liquor laws regarding the approval process by the municipalities or the
county commissioners. This is provided as a courtesy only and may not reflect the law in effect at the time of
application. Please see http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/28-A/title28-Asec653.htrnl

§653. Hearings; bureau review; appeal

1. Hearings. The municipal officers or, fri the case ofunincorpomted places, the county commissioners ofthe county
in which the unincorporated place is located, may hold a public hearing for the consideration ofapplications for new on-
premises licenses and applications fortransfer oflocation ofexisting on-premises licenses. The municipal officers or county
commissioners may hold a public hearing for the consideration of requests for renewal of licenses, except that when an
applicant has held a license for the prior 5 years and a complaint has not been filed against the applicant within that time,
the applicant may request a waiver ofthe hearing.

A.The bureau shall prepare and supply application forms.

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 6 of 11



Section VI Premises Floor Plan

In an effort to clearly define your license premise and the areas that consumption and storage ofliquor authorized
by your license type is allowed, the Bureau requires all applications to include a diagram of the premise to be
licensed.

Diagrams should be submitted on this form and should be as accurate as possible. Be sure to label the following
areas: entrances, office area, coolers, storage areas, display cases, shelves, restroom, point of sale area, area for
on-premise consumption, dining rooms, event/function rooms, lounges, outside area/decks or any other areas on
the premise that you are requesting approval. Attached an additional page as needed to fully describe the premise.

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 10 of 11



Section V: Fee Schedule
-. .

Filing fee required. In addition to the license fees listed below, a filing fee of$1O.OO must be included with all
applications.

.

Please note: For Licensees/Applicants in unorganized territories in Maine, the $10.00 filing fee must be paid
directly to County Treasurer. All applications received by the Bureau from licensees/applicants in unorganized
territories must submit proofofpayment was made to the County Treasurer together with the application.

Class of License Type of liguorlEstablishments included Fee

Class I For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $ 900.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants: Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Vessels; Qualified
Caterers

Class I-A For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $1,100.00
This class includes only hotels that do not serve three meals a day.

Class II For the Sale of Spirits Only $ 550.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; and Vessels.

Class III For the Sale of Wine Only $ 220.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Vessels;
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class IV For the Sale of Malt Liquor Only $ 220.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Taverns;
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class III and IV For the Sale of Malt Liquor and Wine Only $ 440.00
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfCourses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Vessels;
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class V For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $ 495.00
This class includes only a Club without catering privileges.

Class X For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $2.200.00
This class includes only a Class A Lounge

Class XI For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $1,500.00
This class includes only a Restaurant Lounge

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 9 of 11



Section VII: Required Additional Information for a Licensee/Applicant for an On-Premises
Liquor License Who are Legal Business Entities

Questions 1 to 4 ofthis part ofthe application must match information in Section I ofthe application above and
match the information on file with the Maine Secretary of State’s office. If you have questions regarding your
legal entity name or DBA, please call the Secretary of State’s office at (207) 624-7752.

All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Pleaseprint legibly.

1. Exact legal name: i” L LA 1V2 Y1 1ø) rr crt. i”’

2. Doing Business As, if any:

3. Date of filing with Secretary of State: -‘ State in which you are formed: (\4

4. If not a Maine business entity, date on which you were authorized to transact business in the State of Maine:

5. List the name and addresses for previous 5 years, birth dates, titles of officers, directors, managers, members
or partners and the percentage ownership any person listed: (attached additional pages as needed)

Percentage
Date of of

Name Address (5 Years) Birth Title Ownership

t—’ T’’ c’/i/3 Q,iA/L

secD

(Ownership in non-publicly traded companies must add up to 100%.)

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 11 of 11





 

J:\2023\Packets\10-02-2023 Packet Builder\9 New Business\HC to CI BOS 2023.docx  9/26/2023 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
September 14, 2022 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster 
Ref: Harbor Committee/ Cranberry Isle BOS 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Harbor Committee is asking permission to open a line of communication with the Cranberry 
Isles Board of Selectmen. This will be to help Marina plan and resolve parking and docking and 
other uses that have grown over the years by the Cranberry Isles.  
I will be available for questions.  
 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster 
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


 

J:\2023\Packets\10-02-2023 Packet Builder\9 New Business\2023 mooring float chains.docx  9/26/2023 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
September 26, 2023 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster 
Ref: Mooring Floats chains and stone  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
I am asking for authorization to pay for replacement of Northeast Harbor Mooring Floats top and 
bottom chains and mooring stone by Alvah B. Barge Service Inc. for $5,479.36. The Northeast 
Harbor Mooring/Floats CIP 6410100-24681 has a balance of $357,953.04. This is done to repair 
damage that was done during Hurricane Lee. 
 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster 
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


 

J:\2023\Packets\10-02-2023 Packet Builder\9 New Business\Seal Harbor float back chain repair 2023.docx  9/27/2023 

Town of Mount Desert 
John Lemoine, Harbormaster 

40 Harbor Drive, P.O. Box 237 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone     207-276-5737 Fax     207-276-5741 
E-mail Address harbormaster@mtdesert.org 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
September 27, 2023 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Durlin Lunt-Town Manager, Board of Selectmen 
From: John Lemoine-Harbormaster 
Ref: Seal Harbor dinghy float back chains  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
I am asking for authorization to pay for repairs made to the Seal Harbor Dinghy dock back 
chains by Alvah B. Barge Service Inc. for $2,285.41. The Seal Harbor Mooring/Floats CIP 
6410200-24601 has a balance of $126,366.09.  
 
 
John Lemoine 
Harbormaster 
 

mailto:harbormaster@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142 

www.mtdesert.org    highway@mtdesert.org 

MEMO 

To: 

Re: 

Brian Henkel, Public Works Director     
Winter Sand Bids 

From: Ben Jacobs, Highway Superintendent 
Date: September 20, 2023       . 

On September 19, 2023, as scheduled, we opened bids for 2,000 cubic yards of winter sand for the 

FY-24 winter season. We requested bids from three area contractors this year and received one bid 

that was from Harold MacQuinn, Inc.  for $16.75 per cubic yard. The sample we collected at their 

source this year met both  the visual inspection and the lab specifications. 

Recommendation: Based on our successful experience with them and the information presented 

above, I recommend we purchase our FY-24 winter sand from Harold MacQuinn, Inc. at a price of 

$16.75 per cubic yard delivered. As we have done in the past, if we can manage more than the 

2,000 cubic yards in our storage area, we will purchase more from them. Thank you for your 

consideration of my recommendation. 

Cc. Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 

Jake Wright, Finance Director 

Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:director@mtdesert.org


TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 10/2/2023

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2421 10/03/23 539,065.98              

539,065.98$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2419 09/20/23 2,430.35$                
AP#2420 09/27/23 96,478.62$              

Town Payroll
PR#2408 09/29/23 174,342.32$           

273,251.29$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#7 09/29/23 198,706.45$           

Town Voids

198,706.45$           

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 1,011,023.72$     

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2024 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2023.10.02 Selectboard 
Meeting\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
1
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
3
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

2
0
0
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
3
1
4
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
3
8
6
.
0
2
 
 
 
5
9
.
7
%

2
0
1
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
6
,
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
6
,
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
7
,
8
7
3
.
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
0
9
7
.
4
3
 
 
 
9
7
.
7
%

2
0
2
 
T
o
w
n
 
C
l
e
r
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
,
5
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
,
4
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
,
9
4
4
.
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
8
7
.
9
1
 
 
 
9
2
.
2
%

2
0
3
 
E
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
6
6
5
.
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
5
8
4
.
3
8
 
 
 
3
0
.
0
%

2
0
4
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
5
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
6
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
,
1
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
4
6
.
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
6
3
9
.
3
6
 
 
 
2
7
.
0
%

2
0
5
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
,
3
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
,
3
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
,
7
7
6
.
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
0
,
4
5
9
.
3
0
 
 
1
0
4
.
2
%

2
0
6
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
,
1
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
,
3
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
,
8
5
7
.
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
4
8
3
.
7
2
 
 
 
9
4
.
4
%

2
0
7
 
C
o
d
e
 
E
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
,
5
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
,
5
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
3
,
5
4
9
.
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
7
4
.
3
6
 
 
 
9
5
.
1
%

2
0
8
 
U
n
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
,
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
,
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
,
1
3
1
.
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
9
6
8
.
7
8
 
 
 
7
3
.
8
%

2
0
9
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
,
3
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
,
3
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
8
1
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
0
0
.
0
1
 
 
 
7
8
.
9
%

2
1
0
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
1
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
1
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
7
,
4
4
3
.
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
5
,
7
1
2
.
5
3
 
 
1
1
2
.
7
%

3
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

3
5
0
 
R
u
r
a
l
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
,
5
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
2
.
1
%

4
0
1
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
8
,
0
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
,
1
2
5
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
2
,
2
2
0
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
7
,
1
7
5
.
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
4
4
.
2
8
 
 
 
9
9
.
6
%

4
0
3
 
F
i
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
9
7
,
0
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
3
7
9
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
5
,
4
6
7
 
 
 
1
,
7
4
9
,
4
4
7
.
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
6
,
0
2
0
.
2
9
 
 
 
8
7
.
2
%

4
0
4
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

4
0
5
 
S
h
e
l
l
f
i
s
h
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
6
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
1
6
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
4
5
 
 
 
9
9
.
2
%

4
0
7
 
A
n
i
m
a
l
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
2
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
1
.
4
%

4
0
8
 
C
o
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
8
,
8
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
6
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
6
,
5
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
,
4
9
6
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
0
,
0
2
4
.
7
5
 
 
 
7
4
.
2
%

4
0
9
 
E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

5
0
1
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
6
2
,
1
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
8
6
2
,
1
5
3
 
 
 
1
,
8
9
9
,
0
4
8
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
6
,
8
9
5
.
9
5
 
 
1
0
2
.
0
%

5
0
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
4
,
6
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
0
,
6
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
2
,
3
8
5
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
2
6
4
.
7
4
 
 
 
9
8
.
8
%

5
0
6
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
9
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
9
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
3
,
7
0
0
.
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
,
9
0
7
.
3
4
 
 
 
8
4
.
7
%

5
1
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
4
,
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
4
,
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
1
,
5
6
1
.
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
9
6
,
8
5
1
.
0
4
 
 
1
1
4
.
1
%

5
2
0
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&
 
G
r
o
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
7
,
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
7
,
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
,
7
2
5
.
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
1
,
7
5
4
.
9
7
 
 
1
0
9
.
1
%

5
2
5
 
P
a
r
k
s
 
&
 
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
8
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
,
8
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
,
8
7
9
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
,
0
6
2
.
8
4
 
 
1
0
3
.
8
%

5
3
0
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
S
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
2
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
,
9
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
6
5
3
.
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
3
2
1
.
3
3
 
 
 
3
4
.
9
%

6
0
5
 
R
e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
1
1
6
.
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
1
,
2
1
6
.
6
3
 
 
2
9
0
.
1
%

7
0
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
3
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
2
6
.
5
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
6
,
7
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
,
7
5
9
 
 
 
1
,
8
3
2
,
4
6
4
 
 
 
1
,
8
3
2
,
0
1
2
.
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
1
.
8
4
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

8
5
1
 
3
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
,
0
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
,
0
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
,
0
9
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
9
,
4
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
9
,
4
3
6
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
9
,
4
3
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
6
0
,
0
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
,
8
2
0
 
 
1
2
,
9
7
8
,
9
1
6
 
 
1
2
,
4
8
0
,
7
9
9
.
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
2
 
 
 
9
6
.
2
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
1
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
3
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

1
0
1
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
2
,
4
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
,
9
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
2
,
5
9
5
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
5
,
6
3
0
.
2
5
 
 
1
0
2
.
5
%

1
0
2
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
5
3
8
.
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
6
1
.
4
8
 
 
 
4
6
.
9
%

1
0
3
 
B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
7
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
2
.
0
1
 
 
 
2
3
.
9
%

1
0
4
 
S
o
m
e
s
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
2
4
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
0
2
5
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
9
7
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
,
6
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
,
6
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
4
9
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
,
1
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
3
9
.
3
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
1
,
2
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
5
,
7
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
6
,
9
3
4
.
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
8
6
4
.
2
1
 
 
 
9
2
.
6
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
1
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
3
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
1
3
,
4
4
1
,
3
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
3
,
3
7
5
 
 
1
3
,
7
7
4
,
7
1
5
 
 
1
3
,
2
1
7
,
7
3
4
.
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
6
,
9
8
0
.
9
3
 
 
 
9
6
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
1
3

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

2
0
0
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
4
8
.
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
7
2
1
.
4
8
 
 
 
1
3
.
7
%

2
0
1
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
,
3
0
8
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
,
7
5
5
.
8
6
 
 
 
2
3
.
9
%

2
0
2
 
T
o
w
n
 
C
l
e
r
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
2
4
4
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
6
9
5
.
2
0
 
 
 
2
1
.
6
%

2
0
3
 
E
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
8
1
9
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
1
.
1
%

2
0
4
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
5
2
3
.
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
7
3
9
.
7
6
 
 
 
7
3
.
7
%

2
0
5
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
1
4
9
.
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
,
7
0
1
.
1
9
 
 
 
2
3
.
6
%

2
0
6
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
6
0
0
.
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
,
6
1
1
.
4
1
 
 
 
2
5
.
6
%

2
0
7
 
C
o
d
e
 
E
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
9
5
3
.
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
,
5
3
0
.
4
7
 
 
 
1
7
.
4
%

2
0
8
 
U
n
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
9
3
6
.
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
,
0
6
3
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
8
.
8
%

2
0
9
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

2
1
0
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
,
1
9
4
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
,
6
9
2
.
1
7
 
 
 
4
4
.
0
%

2
1
1
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
M
u
n
 
&
 
C
o
m
m
-
O
r
i
e
n
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

3
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

3
5
0
 
R
u
r
a
l
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
0
1
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
9
%

4
0
1
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
6
,
4
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
,
1
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
,
5
3
4
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
7
,
5
7
8
.
8
6
 
 
 
1
6
.
2
%

4
0
3
 
F
i
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
2
,
9
9
1
.
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
,
7
5
4
,
3
4
2
.
3
0
 
 
 
2
2
.
6
%

4
0
4
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
2
5
.
0
%

4
0
5
 
S
h
e
l
l
f
i
s
h
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
6
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
6
.
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
2
4
3
.
1
3
 
 
 
1
7
.
8
%

4
0
7
 
A
n
i
m
a
l
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
8
 
C
o
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
,
5
9
5
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
,
6
9
9
.
5
0
 
 
 
2
1
.
2
%

4
0
9
 
E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

5
0
1
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
1
,
9
8
3
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
2
,
0
8
4
.
2
9
 
 
 
1
7
.
1
%

5
0
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
6
6
8
.
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
4
,
4
8
8
.
6
2
 
 
 
2
0
.
2
%

5
0
6
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
,
7
4
3
.
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
2
,
8
6
4
.
2
5
 
 
 
1
5
.
4
%

5
1
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
1
,
7
7
9
.
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
1
,
8
3
9
.
0
6
 
 
 
2
3
.
1
%

5
2
0
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&
 
G
r
o
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
1
4
7
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
,
3
6
2
.
1
7
 
 
 
2
4
.
5
%

5
2
5
 
P
a
r
k
s
 
&
 
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
9
3
9
.
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
2
6
2
.
3
3
 
 
 
4
4
.
7
%

5
3
0
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
S
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
9
.
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
8
4
0
.
7
6
 
 
 
 
2
.
5
%

6
0
5
 
R
e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
2
3
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
7
6
.
4
2
 
 
 
6
4
.
8
%

7
0
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
1
,
7
5
6
,
9
2
2
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
,
0
6
6
.
1
6
 
 
 
7
9
.
7
%

8
5
1
 
3
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
0
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
1
,
3
6
7
 
 
 
5
,
3
2
6
,
3
6
3
.
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
8
,
8
0
5
,
0
0
2
.
8
8
 
 
 
3
7
.
7
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
1
3

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

1
0
1
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
3
,
5
7
5
.
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
0
,
7
4
5
.
2
7
 
 
 
2
9
.
1
%

1
0
2
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
8
4
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
3
1
5
.
5
1
 
 
 
1
9
.
4
%

1
0
3
 
B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
7
.
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
4
2
.
7
2
 
 
 
 
5
.
4
%

1
0
4
 
S
o
m
e
s
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
1
0
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
1
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
5
.
9
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
,
4
3
5
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
0
,
6
4
4
.
4
4
 
 
 
3
4
.
2
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
1
3

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
2
,
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
3
,
4
4
7
 
 
 
5
,
6
1
7
,
7
9
9
.
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
,
3
6
5
,
6
4
7
.
3
2
 
 
 
3
7
.
5
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
21

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
O

ct
ob

er
 3

, 2
02

3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
93

59
th

ro
ug

h
31

93
98

41
8,

60
6.

90
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

n/
a

an
d

n/
a

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

29
74

th
ro

ug
h

29
91

12
0,

45
9.

08
$ 

   
   

AC
H 

Pa
ym

en
ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

n/
a

an
d

n/
a

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
53

9,
06

5.
98

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
4
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
A
 
C
 
P
A
R
S
O
N
S
 
L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
I
N
G
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
5
9
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
C
 
P
A
R
S
O
N
S
 
L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
I
N
G
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
3
9
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
C
 
P
A
R
S
O
N
S
 
L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
I
N
G
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
C
 
P
A
R
S
O
N
S
 
L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
I
N
G
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
5
2
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
5
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
1
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
6
6
6
.
0
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
9
9
6
.
3
9

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
6
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
2
5
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
7
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
5
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
2
7
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
7
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
8
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
6
3
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
8
8
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
8
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
5
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
5
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
9
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
6
2
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
6
2
.
5
5



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
0
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
0
4
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
4
2
3
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
1
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
 
H
E
D
E
F
I
N
E
 
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
5
6
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
5
6
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
2
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
0
 
I
N
D
U
S
T
R
I
A
L
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
3
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
7
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
1
0
3
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
1
0
3
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
4
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
2
 
M
O
D
E
R
N
 
P
E
S
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
(
R
1
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
5
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
7
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
7
3
5
.
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
7
3
5
.
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
6
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
7
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
G
L
O
B
A
L
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
7
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
1
5
 
P
O
R
T
L
A
N
D
 
G
L
A
S
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
2
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
R
T
L
A
N
D
 
G
L
A
S
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
6
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
5
9
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
9
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
3
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
.
0
7



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
8
.
0
7

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
9
0
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
.
8
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
5
6
.
3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
4
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
0
.
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
6
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
9
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
9
0
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
8
9
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
3
8
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
7
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
9
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
0
5
0
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
2
9
9
1
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
0
 
C
L
A
I
R
E
 
W
O
O
L
F
O
L
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
A
I
R
E
 
W
O
O
L
F
O
L
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
9
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
9
.
3
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
5
9
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
3
3
 
5
 
S
T
A
R
 
Y
A
C
H
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
S
T
A
R
 
Y
A
C
H
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
5
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
0
0
.
0
0



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
0
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
7
7
 
A
B
M
 
M
E
C
H
A
N
I
C
A
L
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
1
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
0
 
B
E
N
 
C
 
W
O
R
C
E
S
T
E
R
,
 
I
I
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
2
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
4
7
 
A
I
R
G
A
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
9
4

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
3
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
3
6
 
A
L
L
E
N
,
 
S
H
E
L
B
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
9
.
8
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
E
N
,
 
S
H
E
L
B
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
E
N
,
 
S
H
E
L
B
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
2
.
3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
2
.
4
6

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
4
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
0
1
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
.
3
1

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
5
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
9
3
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
4
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
6
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
0
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
.
5
5



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
4
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
4
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
9
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
8
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
4
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
9
6
6
.
3
5

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
7
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
5
5

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
8
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
3
9
7
 
B
E
R
N
S
T
E
I
N
 
S
H
U
R
 
S
A
W
Y
E
R
 
&
 
N
E
L
S
O
N
 
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
1
1
2
.
0
0



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
1
1
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
9
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
3
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
8
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
2
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
9
.
1
7

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
0
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
2
8
 
C
I
N
T
A
S
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
N
O
.
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
0
9

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
1
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
2
7
 
C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
 
T
I
R
E
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
2
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
C
U
R
T
I
S
 
F
A
M
I
L
Y
 
S
H
O
E
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
.
9
5

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
3
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
9
8
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
9
8
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
4
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
 
E
L
L
S
W
O
R
T
H
 
C
H
A
I
N
S
A
W
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
.
1
4

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
5
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
 
R
 
H
 
F
O
S
T
E
R
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
9
3
.
5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
9
3
.
5
3

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
6
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
0
 
G
O
N
E
T
S
P
E
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
3
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
3
.
8
4

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
7
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
7
0
 
G
R
O
U
P
 
D
Y
N
A
M
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
3
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
3
.
7
5



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
8
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
3
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
1
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
5
5
.
3
5

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
9
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
9
6
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
7
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
.
7
7

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
0
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
4
6
 
K
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
,
2
1
0
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
,
2
1
0
.
3
5

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
1
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
4
 
H
A
R
O
L
D
 
M
A
C
Q
U
I
N
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
2
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
2
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
9
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
1
5
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
1
5
.
2
1

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
3
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
2
3
6
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
O
X
Y
/
 
S
P
E
C
 
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
3
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
4
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
0
5
2
 
K
E
N
N
E
T
H
 
P
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
5
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
2
5
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
6
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
3
5
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
T
O
W
N
 
&
 
C
I
T
Y
 
C
L
E
R
K
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
0
0



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
7
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
3
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
6
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
7
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
2
6
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
8
.
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
8
8
.
6
3

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
8
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
2
2
 
N
E
I
G
H
B
O
R
H
O
O
D
 
H
O
U
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
1
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
1
.
2
8

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
9
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
9
4
 
O
L
V
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
6
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
8
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
6
2
.
0
0



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
0
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
4
9
 
J
E
F
F
 
V
A
N
 
T
R
U
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
1
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
8
7
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
2
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
6
9
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
3
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
4
.
1
2

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
4
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
8
7
 
U
N
I
T
E
D
 
S
T
A
T
E
S
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
T
E
D
 
S
T
A
T
E
S
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
0
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
.
3
2

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
5
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
6
2
 
V
A
N
A
S
S
E
 
H
A
N
G
E
N
 
B
R
U
S
T
L
I
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
6
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
0
6
 
W
I
T
M
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
7
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
3
1
5
 
E
L
I
Z
A
B
E
T
H
 
Y
E
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
.
7
7

 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
8
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
0
8
 
D
 
L
 
T
H
U
R
R
O
T
T
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
7
7
.
1
6



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
9
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
7
7
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
8
,
6
0
6
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
,
4
5
9
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
,
6
0
4
.
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
8
,
4
6
1
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
8
,
4
6
1
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
0
4
/
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
,
5
2
7
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
,
5
2
7
.
8
8



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
,
6
0
4
.
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
9
,
0
6
5
.
9
8

2
0
0
 
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9



0
9
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
5
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
8
,
4
6
1
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
0
 
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
8
9

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
,
8
6
6
.
8
0

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
3
9
1
.
8
2

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
5
1
.
3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
8
,
4
6
1
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
8
,
4
6
1
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
19

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

0,
 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
93

56
th

ro
ug

h
31

93
57

2,
43

0.
35

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
2,

43
0.

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2419 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Thursday, September 21, 2023 5:51:17 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved

On Sep 20, 2023, at 4:37 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

 
Greetings,
 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2419 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the
amount of $2,403.35 for your approval.                      
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 
I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.
Thank you!
Lisa Young,
Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
 
 
<AP2419.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


24
20

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

7,
 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
93

58
th

ro
ug

h
31

93
58

2,
77

0.
50

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

29
72

th
ro

ug
h

29
73

93
,7

08
.1

2
$ 

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
96

,4
78

.6
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



24
08

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

9,
 2

02
3

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
15

79
4

th
ro

ug
h

15
85

4

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

22
3

th
ro

ug
h

66
24

2

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
17

4,
34

2.
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2420 & PR#2408 Approval Request
Date: Wednesday, September 27, 2023 3:35:11 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved 

Sent from my iPhone

On Sep 27, 2023, at 3:14 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


 
Greetings,
 
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Accounts Payable                #2420     total of          $96,478.62
                                    Payroll                                   #2408     total of          $174,342.32
 
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we
have the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
<4- AP2420.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org






7




	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2023-10-02
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, October 2, 2023, 2023

	Public Hearing
	PUBLIC HEARING Packet Divider Pages 
	Blank Page

	23-24 GA Maximums
	2023 GA Maximums - Recovery Residences.pdf
	Sheet1

	Blank Page


	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	2023-09-18 Selectboard Minutes (1)

	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	Reynolds Scholarship
	ME LWCF 2024 Grant pre-application
	September 6, 2023 CRM Minutes
	HCCO BUDGET HEARING

	OLD
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -5
	Blank Page

	Harbor Comm Recc
	FOA Special Event
	15-2023 Garden Club PSE
	MOU Community Action Grant with Tremont
	King Letter OC Landing
	Memo Versant Invoice 2023.09.28

	NEW
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	Milk & Honey  LL Extension
	Harbor Committee to CI BOS 2023
	2023 mooring float chains
	Seal Harbor float back chain repair 2023
	winter sand 9-20-23-Award

	Warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	Treasurer's Warrant
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	0a- FY23 YTD Budget Report.pdf
	0b- FY24 YTD Budget Report.pdf
	1- AP WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	2- GL Distribution Journal.pdf
	3- AP2419 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- Re_ Warrant AP#2419 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	5- AP2420 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	6- PR2408 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	7- Re_ Warrant AP#2420 & PR#2408 Approval Request.pdf
	8- MDES PR7 BOS & Upload.pdf
	Blank Page


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



